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Five Year Financial Summary

EFFHBEHME

Consolidated Income Statement GmeakaR

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
—TTRF —TTERF —TTLF —TTN\F —FFIF
RMB’ 000 RMB’' 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FTAR®E FTRAR® TAR®E FTTARE FTRARY

Continuing operations: GBS E T

Turnover - 1,048,532 944,622 1,253,230 667,193 435,585
Profit before taxation B B B 4,921 16,072 8,383 26,307 3,344
Income tax Frig®i (878) (2,426) (3,106) (15,759) (2,073)
Profit for the year from FREICEET

continuing operations 2 F A 4,043 13,646 5,277 10,548 1,271

Discontinued operations: T # 1k #7% :
Profit/(loss) for the year BERIEER Y

from discontinued FREF,
operations (E8) (1,770) (2,203) 11,634 = =
Profit for the year FRE A 2,273 11,443 16,911 10,548 1,271
Attributable to: FEA -
Owners of the VINNETE e
Company e 308 12,042 13,802 7,222 (510)
Minority interest DYRRER 1,965 (599) 3,109 3,326 1,781

2,273 11,443 16,911 10,548 1,271

Mayer Holdings Limited Annual Report 2009




Five Year Financial Summary

EFFEFHMBEHRE

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R

At 31 December

R+=—HA=+—H

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

—ETERF ZTERF ZTELF —TTNF ZZTENE

RMB' 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB'000  RMB’'000

FRARE FRARYE FRARE FARYE FTrAR%

Non-current assets ERBEE 217,475 221,900 317,668 358,691 353,381
Current assets MBEE 655,948 690,068 695,539 305,252 344,346
Current liabilities RBaE (543,844) (521,344) (640,248) (192,675) | (208,684)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (48,486) (28,832) = (112,647) (130,831)
281,093 361,792 372,959 358,621 358,212

Issued capital BEITIRA 42,480 50,480 59,460 59,460 59,460
Reserves & 168,744 203,866 245,143 237,376 236,050
Proposed final dividend ¥R REE B 4,000 9,600 11,520 = -
Minority interest VBT R RE 65,869 97,846 56,836 61,785 62,702
281,093 361,792 372,959 358,621 358,212
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Chairman’s Statement

ETR®BE

Dear fellow shareholders,

| am pleased to announce the audited results of Mayer Holdings Limited
("Mayer” or the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2009 (the “Year").

Highlights for the year ended 31 December 2009:

. Group Revenues were RMB435,585,000

. Profit from operations was RMB8,257,000

. Loss attributable to shareholders was RMB510,000
. Loss per share was RMB(0.09) cents

Review of Results

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group reported
consolidated turnover of RMB435,585,000, representing a decrease of
34.7% over last year. Gross profit margin was 11.5% compared to last
year's 9.6%. Net loss attributable to shareholders was RMB510,000,
compared with last year’s net profit of RMB7,222,000. Loss per share
for the year was RMBO0.09 cents versus last year's earnings per share of
RMB1.25 cents respectively.

Dividend
The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2009 (2008: RMBNIL).

Business Review

The national economy of the PRC is continually impacted by the
economic slowdown. The decrease in market demand and overall prices
of steel products has been dropped in the first half of 2009, causing
extreme difficulties to the steel business segment. From January to
June, management took measures under the steel business segment
and immediately reduced costs, enhanced efficiency and adjusted its
markéting strategy for the purpose of easing the current operation
pressure.

Since the second half of 2009, the industrial output saw signs of
recovery and has begun to revive. The Group’s steel business segment
is on a stable recovery track, and successfully improved its performance
recorded earnings for the year 2009.
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Chairman’s Statement

The Group still focused on developing the emerging markets. In the
second half of 2009, based on the actual situation, the Company
increased the supply of its products and strengthened its management,
so as to tackle the changes in operating environment. In anticipation
of a tough economic environment, the Chinese government took
pre-emptive measures and aimed to kept steady market growth, the
Mainland is still represent a huge market with plentiful opportunities.
We also seek opportunities on a globally prospective and ensure our
product portfolio will suit market demands.

The Group’s steel business segment has recorded a segment profit
of RMB11,331,000 for the year. During the year, the Group sold
approximately 73,745 tonnes of steel products, representing 38.3%
decreased from approximately 119,496 tonnes for the last year. The
average selling price of the Group’s steel products during the year
decrease by approximately 26% compared with that of the last year.

The Group's property investment business segment has contributed
RMB8,330,000 segment revenue for the year. The Group believed
that this major acquisition is in line with the Group’s current business
diversification strategy to invest in favorable investments and to
broaden the income base of the Group.

Outlook

Looking ahead in 2010, the imbalance between demand and supply in
the steel and metal sector will continue and the prices of steel and metal
products will still remain at a moderately fast level. In a short run, the
global economy was weaken by the concerns of weak global demand.
With the PRC’s and Vietnam’s economy maintain a rapid growth rate,
still there will be a strong domestic demand for our products.

Along with the global economy is likely to be affected by the fallout
from the U.S. subprime predicament and the weaken U.S. dollar
against other currencies. We expect that the unstable in operating
costs, oil prices and interest rate will continue, and the increasingly
intense market competition will present more challenges to the Group’s
operations.
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Chairman’s Statement

ETR®BE

As the general expectation, Taiwan’s economic growth will benefit from
the next few years following its governmental and economic reforms,
plentiful opportunities will appear while Taiwan continued to make
progress in improving its ties with China. The Group is determined to
capitalise these opportunities arising from the growth of the Taiwan,
together with the growth in the PRC and other countries. The Group
will continue to seek new investment opportunities in stakes in potential
growth and balanced return.

The Group’s management is confident that the Group will fully capitalise
its extensive experience in cost management and achieve greater cost
effectiveness, strengthen high value-added products’ innovation and
achieve customer satisfaction excellence. The Group is welcome to
every investment opportunities which are beneficial to our long term
development, with an aim to generate the best return from investments
and generate the best returns to our investors.

Appreciation

The Company would like to express its sincere gratitude to the
shareholders, banks, business partners, and people from various social
communities, as well as all staff of the Group for their long-time
support.

By Order of the Board

Hsiao Ming-chih
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 April 2010
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Review of Results

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group reported
consolidated turnover of RMB435,585,000, representing decrease of
34.7% over last year. Gross profit margin was 11.5% compared to last
year’s 9.6%. Net loss attributable to shareholders was RMB510,000,
compared with last year’s net profit of RMB7,222,000. Loss per share
for the year was RMBO0.09 cents versus last year’s earnings per share of
RMB1.25 cents respectively.

Production and Sales

The revenue from indirect export sales of steel products in the PRC
and Vietnam during the year was approximately RMB318,090,000,
representing a decrease of approximately 38.6% compared with
approximately RMB517,792,000 for the last year. The market for
indirect export sales in the PRC continued to be the core market for the
Group’s steel segment.

The revenue from domestic sales of steel products in the PRC and
Vietnam during the year was approximately RMB96,730,000,
representing a decrease of approximately 19.7% compared with
approximately RMB 120,406,000 for the last year.

The revenue from direct export sales of steel products outside the
PRC and Vietnam during the year was approximately RMB3,572,000,
representing a decrease of approximately 74.5% while it was
approximately RMB 14,022,000 for the last year.

Rental income and consultancy fee income from aircrafts leasing
during the year was approximately RMB8,033,000 and RMB356,000
respectively compared with approximately RMB8,171,000 and
RMB437,000 respectively for the last year and which represented a
stable stream of income for the Group.

Rental income from property investment was approximately
RMB8,330,000 for the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWED N

The investment property of the Group carried at fair value was
revalued as at 31 December 2009 on an open market value basis
calculated by reference to recent market transactions in comparable
properties and to net rental income allowing for reversionary income
potential. The valuations were carried out by an independent firm of
surveyors, ;2 Sa NE)E (G BRI EH5FT, being a member of the Republic
of China Association of Real Estate Appraisers who have appropriate
qualifications and recent experience in the valuation of similar
properties in the relevant location and category of property being
valued.

Gross Profit

The Group recorded a gross profit of approximately RMB50, 169,000 for
the year, with a gross profit margin of approximately 11.5%, compared
with the gross profit of approximately RMB63,855,000 and a gross
profit margin of approximately 9.6% for the last year.

This was mainly attributable to the average growth rate of the
purchasing costs of raw materials, which was lower than that of the
selling prices of our products for the year of 2009.

Operating Expenses

The total operating expenses of the Group for the year were
approximately RMB48,797,000, of which approximately RMB7,738,000
in distribution costs, RMB37,773,000 in administrative expenses
and RMB3,286,000 in other operating expenses, accounting for
approximately 1.8%, 8.7%, and 0.8% of turnover respectively while
the amounts for the last year were approximately RMB9, 155,000,
RMB44,408,000, and RMB18,273,000 respectively, accounting for

approximately 1.4%, 6.7%, and 2.7 % respectively.

Finance Costs

During-the year, the Group incurred RMB4,913,000 in finance costs,
comp'ared with approximately RMB19,388,000 for the last year. The
Group relied on bank borrowings to finance its trading activities and
property’s mortgage, the decrease in finance costs paid during the year
was mainly due to the decrease in interest rates.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Financial Resources and Treasury Policies

The Group continues to adhere to prudent treasury policies. The Group
continued to insure against major receivables in order to lower the
risks of credit sales and to ensure that funds would be recovered on a
timely basis, hence fulfilling the requirements for debt repayments and
working capital commitments.

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had bank deposits and cash
balances (including pledged bank deposits) of approximately
RMB105,847,000, of which bank deposits of approximately
RMB5,404,000 were pledged to secure financing facilities granted to
the Group.

The Group had net current assets of approximately RMB135,662,000
as at 31 December 2009 as compared with RMB112,577,000 as at 31
December 2008. The current ratio (current assets divided by current
liabilities) changed to approximately 1.65 as at 31 December 2009 from
1.58 as at 31 December 2008.

The Group had a total of approximately RMB512,866,000 financing
facilities from banks were available as at 31 December 2009, of which
approximately RMB262,886,000, mainly denominated in US dollars, HK
dollars, Vietnamese Dong and new Taiwan dollars with floating interest
rates, had been drawn down to finance the Group’s working capital
purposes, capital expenditures and for other acquisition opportunities.

The gearing ratio (net debt divided by total capital) as at 31 December
2009 was approximately 37% while it was 35% as at 31 December
2008. Current portion of borrowings accounted for approximately 22 %
and 21% of the total assets of the Group as at 31 December 2009 and
31 December 2008, respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWED N

Cash Flow

For the year, the Group generated net cash inflow of RMB3,792,000
from its operating activities, as compared to net cash inflow of
approximately RMB269,520,000 for the last year. The decrease in net
cash inflow from operating activities was primarily due to the increase
in the trade and other receivables during the year.

Net cash outflow of approximately RMB7,942,000 was from investing
activities for the year, mainly resulted from the Group’s capital
expenditures. Net cash inflow of approximately RMB28,157,000 was
from financing activities, mainly resulted from the Group’s raising of
bank borrowings.

Banks deposits and cash balances (including pledged bank deposits of
approximately RMB5,404,000) as at 31 December 2009 amounted to
approximately RMB105,847,000, mainly denominated in Renminbi, US
dollars, HK dollars, Vietnamese Dong and new Taiwan dollars.

Foreign Exchange Exposures

As most of the Group’s monetary assets and liabilities are denominated
in Renminbi, US dollars, HK dollars, Vietnamese Dong and new Taiwan
dollars and those currencies remained relatively stable during the year,
the Group was not exposed to any significant exchange risk (see note
26 to the financial statements). In general, it is the Group’s policy for
each operating entity to borrow in local currencies, where necessary, to
minimize currency risk.

Charge on Group Assets

As at 31 December 2009, investment property of the Group with
carrying amount of approximately RMB220,867,000 of which pledged
amount was limited to RMB157,745,000 and bank deposits of
approximately RMB5,404,000 were pledged to banks for securing
banki'ng and other financing facilities granted to the Group. These
financing facilities had been utilised to the extent of approximately
RMB135,760,000 at the end of the reporting period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2009, the Company has given corporate guarantees
in favour of certain banks to secure banking facilities of RMB92,180,000
(2008: RMB244,356,000) granted to the subsidiaries. Out of these
banking facilities, RMB47,798,000 was utilised by Guangzhou Mayer as
at 31 December 2009 (2008: RMB172,874,000).

The maximum liability of the Company under the guarantees
issued represents the amount drawn down by the subsidiary of
RMB47,798,000 (2008: RMB172,874,000). No recognition was made
because the fair value of the guarantees was insignificant and that
the directors did not consider it probable that a claim would be made
against the Company under the guarantees.

Apart from the above, the Company and the Group have no other
material contingent liabilities at both of the end of the reporting
periods.

Employment, Training and Development

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had total of 350 employees. Total
staff costs for the year ended 31 December 2009 were approximately
RMB 18,874,000, including retirement benefits cost of approximately
RMB2,371,000. Remuneration packages of the Group are maintained
at a competitive level to attract, retain and motive employees and are
reviewed on a periodic basis.

The Group always maintains good relation with its employees and is
committed to employee training and development on a regular basis to
maintain the quality of our products.

In addition, the Company has a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants. No option has
been granted under the scheme since its adoption.
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Biographical Details of Directors
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Executive Directors

Mr. Hsiao Ming-chih, aged 50, is redesignated as an executive director
and the chairman of the Company on 19 December 2008. Mr. Hsiao
holds a Bachelor degree in Commerce from the Accounting Faculty
of Tung Hai University. Mr. Hsiao is currently the general manager
of Taiwan Mayer, the Chairman of Fullchamp Technologies Co., Ltd.
("Fullchamp”) and a director of Tze Shin International Company
Limited.

Mr. Lai Yueh-hsing, aged 52, is an executive director and is responsible
for the overall corporate strategy and planning of the Group. He holds
a Bachelor degree in Corporate Management from Tamkang University.
He is currently the general manager of Durban Development Co.,
Limited.

Mr. Lo Haw, aged 47, is an executive director of the Company
responsible for the product development of the Group. He holds a
Master of Business Administration degree in 1992 from Bloomsbury
University of Pennsylvania. Mr. Lo has over 18 years of experience in
the steel pipe and sheet industry. Prior to his appointment as director
of Guangzhou Mayer Corp., Limited (“Guangzhou Mayer”) on 23
November 1995, Mr. Lo had worked as vice-chairman of Yungfa Steel
Corp., Limited. He is currently a director of a number of companies,
namely, Taiwan Mayer and Fukang Investments Holdings Company
Limited. Mr. Lo was awarded by the Guangzhou Municipal Government
as “Honorary Citizen”.

Dr. Lin Meng-chang, aged 40, graduated with a Ph.D. degree in
corporate management from the Shanghai University of Finance &
Economics in 2003 and a MBA degree from the George Washington
University in 1996. Prior to his appointment as director of the Company,
Dr. Lin has over 12 years of experience in securities and investment
banking industry. He is also a director of Waterland Securities Co.,
Ltd. and had worked as the general manager of Waterland Securities
Investment Consulting Co., Ltd.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Mr. Lu Wen-yi, aged 59, graduated and received from the National
Chung Hsing University a Bachelor degree in Laws in 1973. Prior to his
appointment as director of the Company, Mr. Lu has over 24 years of
experience in real estate development and over 8 years of experience in
biotechnology industry. He is currently a CEO of High Sierra Biotech LLC.
and the general manager of &/ ZHEHEBR A F].

Mr. Cheng Dar-terng, aged 58, is an executive director of the
Company. Mr. Cheng obtained a Master degree in Business
Management from University of Dallas in the United States. He was
appointed as a director of Guangzhou Mayer on 23 November 1995. He
is currently a director of Taiwan Mayer.

Mr. Chiang Jen-chin, aged 43, is an executive director of the Company
responsible for financial activities of the Group. He has over 19 years of
experience in the steel pipe and sheet industry. Mr. Chiang is currently
the manager to the general manager office of Taiwan Mayer.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Huang Chun-fa, aged 52, is a non-executive director of the
Company. Mr. Huang has held senior positions in various listed
companies in Taiwan and is currently the chairman of Durban
Development Company Limited, the chairman of Tze Shin International
Company Limited and the chairman of Taiwan Mayer.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lin Sheng-bin, aged 45, is an independent non-executive director
of the Company. Mr. Lin holds a Master degree in Finance from National
Chung-Cheng University. He has worked as the section staff member,
commissioner, auditor and the supervisor of the Regulatory Commission
for Securities and Futures, under the Finance Ministry of Taiwan and
the supervisor of First Taiwan Securities Inc. He is currently the executive
vice president of Sinopac Securities Corp. and directors of Giga Trend
International Venture Investment Corp. and Gigawin International
Venture Investment Corp.
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Biographical Details of Directors
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Mr. Huang Jui-hsiang, aged 49, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company. Mr. Huang obtained a Master degree in
Accountancy from National Chengchi University. He has over 16 years
of experience in the accounting field. He had worked as the assistant
manager in the audit services department of KPMG in Taiwan.

Mr. Alvin Chiu, aged 49, is an independent non-executive director
of the Company. Mr. Chiu graduated from the University of Southern
California in 1983 majoring in Economics. He has extensive commercial
and retail banking experience in the U.S. He had worked as the vice
president and branch manager of First Central Bank in Los Angeles,
California for eight years. Mr. Chiu is now the managing director of
Pacific Links Group Limited and Pacific Connections Group Limited. He
has experience in China trades, importation and wholesale industries.
He is also involved in the contract manufacturing, electronics and
original equipment manufacturing (“OEM") assembly business in
Greater China.
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Biographical Details of Senior Management
and Company Secretary
SREEABRAGIMEER

Senior Management

Mr. Shen Heng-chiang, aged 55 is the general manager of
Guangzhou Mayer responsible for the Group’s sales and marketing
activities. Mr. Shen graduated from the faculty of industrial
management in Tam Shui Institute of Business Administration College
in 1976. Mr. Shen has over 26 years of experience in the steel industry.
Prior to his appointment as the general manager of Guangzhou Mayer
on 23 November 1995, Mr. Shen had worked as general manager of
Yungfa Steel Corp., Limited. He is currently a committee member of the
Taiwan Investment Enterprise Association in Guangzhou and a senior
management staff of Taiwan Mayer.

Mr. Shen Chin-an, aged 48, is the deputy general manager of
Guangzhou Mayer responsible for sales activities. He holds a Bachelor
degree in Japanese language from SooChow University. Mr. Shen
joined the Group on 12 January 1999. Having ample experience in steel
industry, Mr. Shen had worked for Ta Fu Steel Industrial Co., Limited and
Shang Fu Steel Industrial Co., Limited.

Mr. Huang Yu-chi, aged 41, is the deputy general manager of
Guangzhou Mayer responsible for financial management in Guangzhou
Mayer. He is also the secretary to board of directors of Guangzhou
Mayer. He is now a student seating for doctoral degree in Jinan
University and holds a bachelor degree in Industrial Engineering from
Tung Hai University. Prior to joining the Group on 5 September 1996, he
had worked as a senior officer of Taiwan Mayer.

Ms. Su Li-jung, aged 50, is the administration manager of Guangzhou
Mayer responsible for procurement activities. Ms. Su graduated from
the Faculty of Dance and Music of Chinese Culture University majoring
in dancing. Prior to joining the Group on 4 March 2003, she had worked
as the assistant manager of Nahuaou Co., Limited and manager of
Hong Kong International Insurance Agent.
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Biographical Details of Senior Management

and Company Secretary
BEREEBEABERAAUEER

Company Secretary NEME

Mr. Chan Lai Yin Tommy, aged 38, is also the financial controller REBELLE 3851 MANEEVKERR
and qualified accountant of the Group and a member of the senior EEBEHE - BARTIZEBREEAE -
management of the Company. He is an associate member of the Hong BRAEBBBSHMAERERSFHAQ
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the BCEE RAEEBREBRITFRERE
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chan has over SHEER c WARIMARRFR - BRER—KE
17 years of experience in audit and accounting field. Prior to joining BEMAREEMBRERATWE -
the Company, he held the posts of financial controller and company

secretary of a listed company in Hong Kong.
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Report of the Directors

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements of Mayer Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2009.

Principal Activities and Geographical Analysis of
Operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 15 to the financial
statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business and
geographical segments is set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

Results

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2009 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 43 to 47.

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five years is set out on pages 4 to 5.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year are
set out in note 25 to the financial statements.
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EERE

Reserves

Details of movements of the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 25 to the financial statements and in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2009 amounted
to RMB169,243,000 (2008: RMB155,750,000).

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders of the Company.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The largest and the five largest customers accounted for 10% and 28%
of the Group's total turnover for the year, respectively. The largest and
the five largest suppliers accounted for 79% and 85% of the Group’s
purchases for the year, respectively.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these major
customers and suppliers.

Share Option Scheme

The share option scheme was adopted on 24 May 2004 (the “Share
Option Scheme") for the primary purpose of providing incentive and
to recognize the contribution of the eligible participants to the growth
of the Group and will expire on 24 May 2014. Under the Share Option
Scheme, the Board may grant options to eligible full time employees,
including any executive, non-executive and independent non-executive
directors, and consultants or advisers of the Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries.
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Report of the Directors

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Up to 31 December 2009, no options have been granted since the
adoption of the Share Option Scheme. The total number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other option schemes is not permitted to exceed 30%
of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted to any individual in any
year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the
Company, without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.

Options may be exercised at any time from the date of grant to the 10
years of the date of grant. No minimum period for which an option
must be held is required. The exercise price, which is determined by the
Board, is the highest of: (i) the closing price per share on the date of
grant; (ii) the average closing price per share for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of
a share.

Purchase, Sale and Redemption of the
Company'’s Listed Securities

During the year, there was no purchase, sale or redemption by the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries, of the Company’s listed shares.
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Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Hsiao Ming-chih

Mr. Lai Yueh-hsing

Mr. Lo Haw

Mr. Cheng Dar-terng

Mr. Chiang Jen-chin

Dr. Lin Meng-chang (resigned on 11/2/2009)
Mr. Lu Wen-yi

Non-executive director

Mr. Huang Chun-fa

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Huang Jui-hsiang
Mr. Lin Sheng-bin
Mr. Alvin Chiu

In accordance with article 112 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
each of Mr. Huang Jui-hsiang, Mr. Lin Sheng-bin and Mr. Alvin Chiu will
retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and being
eligible, will offer himself for re-election.

Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out on
pages 14 to 16.
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Report of the Directors

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for an initial term of one year commencing from
their respective dates of appointment and shall continue thereafter from
year to year until and unless terminated by either party by giving to the
other party not less than three months’ prior written notice.

Each of the non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors has entered into a service agreement with the Company for
an initial term of one year commencing from their respective dates of
appointment and shall continue thereafter from year to year until and
unless terminated by either party by giving to the other party not less
than three months’ prior written notice.

Save as disclosed above, no directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service agreement with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-executive
directors an annual confirmation of his independence in 2009 pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and as at the date of this report, the
Company still considers the independent non-executive directors to be
independent.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company and the
Group was entered into or existed during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts
Saved as disclosed in note 27 to the financial statements, no director
had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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Interests and Short Positions of the Directors and
Chief Executives of the Company

As at 31 December 2009, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO"))
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they have taken, or deemed to have taken under such
provisions), or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register required to be kept therein, or which were
required pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies in the Listing Rules to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Long positions in the share capital of Mayer Steel Pipe
Corporation (“Taiwan Mayer”)
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Approximate

Number of ordinary shares in Taiwan Mayer % of
AEETELEREE shareholding
Name of director Personal Family Corporate Other Total FRBA
HEpA fBA i3 AF] Hith a5t Baotk
Mr. Lo Haw 279,438 1,208 13,544,452 - 13,825,098 6.73%
BERE
Mr. Cheng Dar-terng - 396,000 2,941,655 - 3,337,655 1.62%
Mr. Chiang Jen-chin 6,601 - - - 6,601 0.00%
Bk sE
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Interests and Short Positions of the Directors and
Chief Executives of the Company (Continued)

Long positions in the share capital of Guangzhou Mayer Corp.,
Ltd. ("Guangzhou Mayer")

Number of ordinary shares in Guangzhou Mayer
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Approximate
% of total

EMNEZEEREE shareholding

Approximate

Name of director Personal Family Corporate Other #FREMD

EEHE A Rik A Hity BatE

Mr. Lo Haw - - 12,800,000 - 6.40%
BERE

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009, none of the directors
or chief executives of the Company nor their respective associates, had
any interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which would have to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
have taken, or deemed to have taken under such provisions), or which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register required to be kept therein, or which were required pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies in the Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange, and none of the directors or chief executives, or their
respective spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to
subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any such
rights at any time during the year.

BREXHEREESN R_ZFFNAF+ A
=T—B YEARBEFHTIEZITRA
B IREEAZHEATIRARRHE
EREESEE (E & BB 5 KRB HRGIFEXV
#B) 2 Bt~ HEER D RERZE P HERE
EHRAERPIEXVEBETRD HAME
AR N B P (BIER B A BIRSUR F1K
EEIERARBEZEDZIIXR) - HRIE
&5 MG IRBIE3521RAM A LG 2
B HRELETRIA LT ARES
ETRFXHNRETAZREAME R
NA NIz R RAR - REFRE
RITRABXBEEA 2EB/IR M TN
RTEBERFEEMAIRBARBAFFLZ
R - TR AR B AR B 1T R A
AL

ETEREBERAE 2009 F #H

25




Report of the Directors
EE®RE

Substantial Shareholders

So far as the directors of the Company are aware, the person/entity (not
being a director or a chief executive of the Company) who has interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company,
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part IV of the SFO, were as follows:

Long positions in the share capital of the Company
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Approximate percentage
of Company’s

Capacity and issued share capital

Name Nature of interest Number of shares EARDRE BT

REREM SORERNE BREROEA BRABMOE D

Taiwan Mayer (Note 1) Corporate 200,000,000 34.72%
ARET (W) AR

Mayer Corporation Development Corporate 200,000,000 34.72%
International Limited (“BVI Mayer") NSl

Mayer Corporation Development
International Limited ( [BVI Mayer] )

Note 1:  BVI Mayer is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Taiwan Mayer. Taiwan Mayer

is deemed to be interested in the 200,000,000 shares held by BVI Mayer
under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009, the directors of
the Company are not aware of any other person/entity (not being a
director or a chief executive of the Company) who has interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company, which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part IV of the SFO, or who is directly or indirectly
interested in 10% or more of the shares of the Company or equity
interest in any member of the Group representing 10% or more of the
equity interest in such company.
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Report of the Directors

Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to
any directors, supervisors or their respective spouse or minor children,
or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, or any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

Connected Transactions

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in note 27 to the financial
statements also constituted connected transactions under the Listing
Rules, required to be disclosed in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The following transactions between certain connected
parties (as defined in the Listing Rules) and the Company have been
entered into and/or are ongoing for which relevant announcements,
if necessary, had been made by the Company in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

(1) ROC Advance Limited (“ROC"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into an aircraft lease agreement with Daily Air
Corporation (“Daily Air”), a related company in which Mr. Huang
Chun-fa, a non-executive director of the Company, has beneficial
interest, regarding the leasing of four aircrafts and the provision of
consultancy services by ROC to Daily Air for a term of three years
commencing from 1 May 2006 to 30 April 2008 in consideration
of rental income and consultancy fee income. On 6 May 2008,
the lease agreement was further extended to 7 June 2011 with
rental income and consultancy fee income remain unchanged. At
the end of the reporting period, RMB8,557,000 (At 31 December
2008: RMB7,025,000) is due from this related company.
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EERE

Connected Transactions (Continued)

)

On 13 April 2007, Guangzhou Mayer Corporation Limited
("Guangzhou Mayer”), a 81.4% indirectly owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into the Raw Material Purchase Agreement
with Mayer Steel Pipe Corporation (“Taiwan Mayer”), the ultimate
holding company, for the acquisition of raw materials from
Taiwan Mayer for the period commencing from 1 April 2007 to
31 March 2010. The directors of the Company expect that the
maximum amount of raw material purchase for the three years
ending 31 March 2010 will be in the amounts of approximately
USD3,900,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB30,100,000),
USD4,300,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB33,200,000) and
UsD4,700,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB36,300,000),
respectively.

Further on 22 May 2009, Guangzhou Mayer entered into a
revised Raw Material Purchase Agreement with Taiwan Mayer
for the period commencing from 1 July 2009 to 31 December
2011. The directors of the Company expect that the maximum
amount of raw material purchase for the six months ending
31 December 2009 will be in the amount of USD1,560,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB10,723,000) and the two years
ending 31 December 2011 will be in the amounts of approximately
UsD2,340,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB16,080,000) and
USD2,340,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB16,080,000),
respectively.

On the same date, Guangzhou Mayer entered into a Finished
Goods Sale Agreement with Taiwan Mayer for the sales of finished
goods to Taiwan Mayer for the period commencing from 1 July
2009 to 31 December 2011. The directors of the Company
expect that the maximum amount of finished goods sales for the
six months ending 31 December 2009 will be in the amount of
USD1,837,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB12,626,000) and
the two years ending 31 December 2011 will be in the amounts
of approximately USD3,675,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB25,261,000) and USD5,512,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB37,878,000), respectively.
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Connected Transactions (Continued) BERS (&)
During the year, Guangzhou Mayer has purchased raw materials FA-EMNETERMAEETRREQ
from Taiwan Mayer of approximately RMB5,474,000 (2008: 5,474,000 AR (ZZZN\FE BT A
RMBNil) at terms similar to those charged to independent third R ZRZME - BRGREBLE=
parties suppliers. FHERREANAESE
During the year, Guangzhou Mayer has sold finished goods to FRN-EMNELERAEEDRHELD
Taiwan Mayer of approximately RMB1,578,000 (2008: RMBNil) 1,578,000t AR (ZEZENF : T
at terms similar to those charged to independent third parties ARME) 28I G - BEIRKEBLE
customers. =ARPREREMES -

Senior Management and Company Secretary SREEEBRATAWE

Biographical details of the senior management and company secretary REERRERERATMEZEREHL

of the Group are set out on pages 17 to 18. FE17E18H

Auditor B Em

The financial statements have been audited by CCIF CPA Limited BREDCHRESSTMEBMER
("CCIF"). CCIF will retire as auditor at the conclusion of the forthcoming AR ((RESSETMELAT]) iz - RE
Annual General Meeting and will not offer themselves for re- BEMEBHAKRABRITZAFAE
appointment following the merger of business with PCP CPA Limited LARER EERHEEZEEXKSAISE
resulting in Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited operating as the merged BRHRAREAMHAEEEE (FH) g5
firm. Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited is a new member firm in Hong MMESAARAR  BRESSTMEBA
Kong for Crowe Horwath International. REIBRITZAFRAE LTEREEES
Fe-BEEE (A SAMELAERD
AR EEERRNERN —FHKE -

As a result of these changes, a resolution for the appointment of Crowe LatiER R RTCAFERE LB
Horwath (HK) CPA Limited as auditor of the Company will be proposed REAZRZEEZEE () G5t S

at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. BRBR AR AN T ZFTIZEE -
By order of the Board REZED

Hsiao Ming-chih FE

Chairman BEGE

Hong Kong, 23 April 2010 EFEH —ET-TFWA=-+=H
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The Company recognizes the importance of good corporate
governance to the Company’s healthy growth and has devoted
considerable efforts to identify and formalize the best corporate
governance practices appropriate to the needs of its business.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles (“Principles”) and the code provisions (“Code Provisions”)
as set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“"CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) (“Listing Rules”). The Company has complied with most of
the Code Provisions save for the Code Provisions on internal controls
which are to be implemented for accounting periods commencing on
or after 1 July 2005 pursuant to the CG Code and certain deviations
from the Code Provisions in respect of Code Provisions A.4.1 and A.4.2,
details of which are explained below. The Company periodically reviews
its corporate governance practices to ensure that these continue to
meet the requirements of the CG Code.

The Company wishes to highlight the importance of its board of
directors (“Board”) in ensuring effective leadership and control of the
Company and transparency and accountability of all operations.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company
are summarised as follows:

Board of Directors

As at 31 December 2009, the Board consisted of six executive directors
and four non-executive directors (of whom three are independent).

The independent non-executive directors are all experienced individuals
from a range of industries and geographies. Their mix of professional
skills and experience is an important element in the proper functioning
of the Board and in ensuring a high standard of objective debate and
overall input to the decision-making process. The Board has received
from each independent non-executive director a written confirmation
of their independence and has satisfied itself of such independence up
to the approval date of this report in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

The biographical details of the directors are provided on pages 14 to 16
of this report.

The Code Provision A.2.1 stipulated that the roles of chairman of the
Board (the “Chairman”) and chief executive officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. The division
of responsibilities between the Chairman and chief executive officer
should be clearly established and set out in writing.

Mr Hsiao Ming-chih has been both the Chairman and chief executive
officer of the Company. Given the Company’s current stage of
development, the Board considers that vesting the roles of Chairman
and chief executive officer in the same person facilitates the execution
of the Company’s business strategies and maximizes effectiveness of its
operations. The Board shall nevertheless review the structure from time
to time and shall consider the appropriate adjustment should suitable
circumstance arise.

The Board at Work

The Board is accountable to shareholders for the activities and
performance of the group. It meets in person on a half-yearly basis and
on other occasions when a Board-level decision on a particular matter
is required. The Board has reserved for its decision or consideration
matters covering corporate strategy, annual and interim results,
directors’ appointment, succession planning, risk management, major
acquisitions, disposals and capital transactions, and other significant
operational and financial matters.

The majority of Board meetings are scheduled to last one full day, with
directors receiving details of agenda items for decision and minutes of
committee meetings in advance of each Board meeting.

Although the capacity of any board to involve itself in the details of a
large international business is limited, the Company aims to provide
its independent non-executive directors with extensive exposure and
access to its operations and management. Over the past two years, the
number and duration of Board meetings have increased and the Board
agenda is structured to address the broad spectrum of key governance
issues on a regular and systematic basis.
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The Board at Work (Continued)

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as
well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with a view to
ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations
are followed.

Each director is normally able to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making
request to the Board.

Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated by the Board to
management include the preparation of annual and interim accounts
for Board approval before public reporting, execution of business
strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board, implementation of
adequate systems of internal controls and risk management procedures,
and compliance with relevant statutory requirements and rules and
regulations.

The Group's chief financial officer also attends all board meetings
to advise on corporate governance, risk management, statutory
compliance, mergers and acquisitions, and accounting and financial
matters.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive directors with at least one
independent non-executive director processing appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
independent non-executive directors to be independent in accordance
with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.
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The Board at Work (Continued)

The non-executive directors together have substantial experience in
fields of auditing, business, accounting, corporate internal control
and regulatory affairs. Through active participation in Board meetings,
taking the lead in managing issues involving potential conflict of
interests and serving on Board committees, all non-executive directors
make various contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

The Company has not yet adopted Code Provision A.4.1 which provides
that non-executive directors should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election. All the non-executive directors of the Company
are not appointed for a specific term although in practice they are
subject to retirement on rotation and re-election at the Company’s
annual general meetings pursuant to the Company’s Articles of
Association.

Each newly appointed director receives comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as
to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the business
and operations of the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/
her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements.
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Committees

The monitoring and assessment of certain governance matters are
allocated to three committees which operate under defined terms of
reference. The composition of the committees during 2008/09 and up
to the date of this report is set out in the table below.

Directors Audit Committee

E= BHEEE

Remuneration Committee

Z88
ETEASECEENFATEEOIET
—EEZEg REZBQNRERERE

Nomination Committee

I EI REZEE

Executive Director $i{TEE

Hsiao Ming-chih (Chairman) B&S (/&)

Lai Yueh-hsing 1B 2 &

Lo Haw %

Cheng Darterng Zhi&

Chiang Jen-chin B1=#X

Lin Meng-chang # % 2 (resigned on 11/2/2009)(R=ZEZTAF = A +—HEHT)
Lu Wen-yi BXE

Non-Executive Director 3k H{TES
Huang Chun-fa &%

Independent Non-Executive Directors B 4T EE
Lin Sheng-bin #REE)E

Huang Jui-hsiang B

Alvin Chiu =

Member F% &
Chairman ¥ &
Member 5 &

Member X &
Chairman ¥/

Member % &
Chairman /&

Member X &
Member B &
Member X &

Member % &
Member % &
Member Bk &

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is comprised of three independent non-executive
directors who together have substantial experience in the fields of
accounting, business, corporate governance and regulatory affairs.

The committee is responsible for monitoring the reporting, accounting,
financial and control aspects of the executive management’s activities. It
has full access to the Group’s chief financial officer to hear directly any
concerns of the internal audit department that may have arisen during
the course of the department’s work.

The committee also monitors the appointment and function of the
Group's external auditor.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 22 August 2005 and
is comprised of three independent non-executive directors and two
executive directors (as the Committee Chairman).

The committee determines the compensation structure and rewards for
the chief executive officer and other executive directors and monitors
the policies being applied in remunerating other senior executives
in the Group. In addition, it has responsibility for reviewing and
making appropriate recommendations to the Board on management
development and succession plans for executive directors and senior
management levels.

The fundamental policy underlying the Company’s remuneration and
incentive schemes is to link total compensation for senior management
with the achievement of annual and long-term performance goals.
By providing total compensation at competitive industry levels for
delivering on-target performance, the Company seeks to attract,
motivate and retain key executives essential to its long-term success.
Senior management incentive schemes include any equity component
that is designed to align the long-term interest of management with
those of shareholders.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 22 August 2005 and
is comprised of three independent non-executive directors and two
executive directors (as the Committee Chairman).

The committee is responsible for the identification and evaluation of
candidates for appointment or reappointment as a director, as well as
the development and maintenance of the Group’s overall corporate
governance policies and practices.
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Board and Committee Attendance EEERZEEEZHER
The Board held 5 regular meetings in 2009 and the average attendance EEEgN_ETNFELRITOATHEE -

rate was 46%. Details of the attendance of individual directors at Board FHHER BL6% - R-_ZTZT)N\ TN
meetings and committee meetings during the 2008/09 financial year BFEE ElEENEEEeRREET
are set out in the table below. R ZJHBEHABHRNTE

Number of meetings attended/held
HE S BITEBRE

Remuneration Nomination

Directors Full Board Audit Committee Committee Committee

= 3 BEREES FHEES REZES

Executive Directors H{TESE

Hsiao Ming-chih FE&E 4/5 11 11
Lai Yueh-hsing 82 & 5/5 0/1 0/1
Lo Haw Z&% 0/5
Cheng Dar-terng EBi % 2/5
Chiang Jen-chin #{—8k 5/5
Lin Meng-chang ## 0/5
Lu Wen-yi @33 4/5

Non-Executive Director FEH{TE =
Huang Chun-fa E& 3% 0/5

Independent Non-Executive

Directors B FHITES
Lin Sheng-bin AREEIE, 0/5 0/2 0/1 0/1
Huang Jui-hsiang & m#E 1/5 2/2 11 11
Alvin Chiu #&ifE 4/5 2/2 1”1 171
Average attendance rate 46% 67% 60% 60%
FIIHER
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Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all directors at least 14
days before the meetings while reasonable notice is generally given for
other Board meetings. For committee meetings, notices are served in
accordance with the required notice period stated in the relevant terms
of reference.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete
and reliable information are sent to all directors at least 3 days before
each Board meeting or to the relevant committee members at least 2
days before each Remuneration Committee Meeting or at least 4 days
before each Audit Committee meeting to keep the directors apprised of
the latest developments and financial position of the Company and to
enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each director
also have separate and independent access to the senior management
whenever necessary.

Minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings are kept by the
company secretary. Draft minutes are normally circulated to directors
for comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final
version is open for directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a director,
will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board
meeting. The Company’s Articles of Association also contain provisions
requiring directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the
quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which such directors
or any of their associates have a material interest.

Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board is responsible for ensuring that an adequate system of
internal controls is maintained within the Group, and for reviewing its
effectiveness through the Audit Committee.

The internal control system, which includes a defined management
structure with specified limits of authority, is designed to (a) help the
achievement of business objectives, and safeguard the Group’s assets;
(b) ensure proper maintenance of accounting records; and (c) ensure
compliance with relevant legislation and regulations.
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Internal Control and Risk Management
(Continued)

The internal control system is designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to
manage, but not to eliminate, risks of failure in achieving the Group’s
objectives.

The processes to identify and manage key risks to the achievement
of the Group’s strategic objectives are an integral part of the internal
control environment. Such processes include strategic planning,
the appointment of senior management, the regular monitoring
of performance, control over capital expenditure and investments
and the setting of high standards and targets for safety, health and
environmental performance.

The management maintains and monitors the system of controls on an
ongoing basis.

The Group’s internal audit department, under the supervision of
the chief financial officer, independently reviews these controls and
evaluates their adequacy, effectiveness and compliance, and reports
such findings directly to the Audit Committee on a regular basis. The
Board, through the Audit Committee assesses the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control system which covers all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions on an annual basis.

During 2008/2009, based on the evaluations made by the
management, the chief financial officer and external auditors, the Audit
Committee was satisfied that nothing has come to its attention to cause
the Audit Committee to believe that the system of internal control is
inadequate; and there is an ongoing process to identify, evaluation and
manage significant risks faced by the Group.

External Auditor

The Company’s independent external auditor is CCIF CPA Limited. The
Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment of the
external auditor and also reviews any non-audit functions performed
by the external auditor for the Group. In particular, the Committee
will consider, in advance of them being contracted for and performed,
whether such non-audit functions could lead to any potential material
conflict of interest.
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Communications with Shareholders

The Company uses a number of formal communications channels to
account to shareholders for the performance of the Company. These
include the annual report and accounts, the interim report, periodic
company announcements made through the Stock Exchange, as well as
through the annual general meeting. The Company aims to provide its
shareholders and potential investors with high standards of disclosure
and financial transparency. In order to provide effective disclosure
to investors and potential investors and to ensure they all receive
equal access to the same information at the same time, information
considered to be of a price sensitive nature is released by way of formal
public announcements as required by the Listing Rules. The Company
also welcomes comments and questions from shareholders at its annual
general meeting.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Group has adopted procedures governing directors’ securities
transactions in compliance with the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules.

Employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-
sensitive information of the Group are also subject to compliance with
guidelines on no less exacting terms than the Model Code.

Having made specific enquiry of all directors, the Directors have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
regarding directors’ securities transactions.

Directors’ and Auditors’ Responsibilities for
Accounts

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-
sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures required under
the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
20009.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 41 to 42.
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Shareholder rights and investor relations

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding a poll on
resolutions at shareholders’ meetings are contained in the Company’s
Articles of Association. Details of such rights and procedures are
included in all circulars to shareholders and will be explained during the
proceedings of meetings. Whenever voting by way of a poll is required,
the detailed procedures for conducting a poll will be explained.

Poll results will be published in newspapers on the business day
following the shareholders’” meeting and posted on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each
substantial issue, including the election of individual directors.

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships
with its investors. Designated senior management maintain regular
dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast
of the Company’s developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with
in an informative and timely manner.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

®

CCIF

CCIF CPA LIMITED

34/F The Lee Gardens
33 Hysan Avenue
Causeway Bay Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
MAYER HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Mayer
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 43 to 160, which
comprise the consolidated and Company statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2009, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that
are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of the report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 December 2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

CCIF CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 23 April 2010

Sze Chor Chun, Yvonne
Practising Certificate Number P05049
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Consolidated Income Statement

mE Wl E R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 BZE—_ZEZTNF+_A=+—HILFE

2009 2008
—EETNE —ETNF
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
Bk TRARY FLARE
Turnover EEH 4 435,585 667,193
Cost of sales HEKR (385,416) (603,338)
Gross profit E7 50,169 63,855
Other revenue Hiolz 5 6,830 14,183
Other net income Heb Uy A 558 5 55 2,838
Valuation gain on RENMEL
investment property fhEKE 14(a) - 36,655
Distribution costs 2 KA (7.738) (9,155)
Administrative expenses THEY (37,773) (44,408)
Other operating expenses HigEm% (3,286) (18,273)
Profit from operations IREHR 8,257 45,695
Finance costs Ak A 6(a) (4,913) (19,388)
Profit before taxation R A& 6 3,304 26,307
Income tax FTSH 7() (2,073) (15,759)
Profit for the year FRmH 1,271 10,548
Attributable to: Py
Owners of the Company i /NIE DN 10 (510) 7222
Minority interest DERRRER 1,781 3,326
Profit for the year FERER 1,271 10,548
(Loss)/earnings per share SR (B8) /BA
Basic and diluted BEAREE 12 |(RMBAR#0.09 cents?) | RMBA E#1.25 cents
The notes on pages 51 to 160 form part of these financial statements. FES1E160E 2 M AMBRE 2 —35 -

Details of dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable to FARIGEERARRREEB AR 2REF
profit for the year are set out in note 11. TBEESRBIEETT ©
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
e 2 HEWRE KR

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZE—_ZEZNF+_A=+—HILLFE

2009 2008
—2BAE  —TEINF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

B 5E FTRARY TETARE

Profit for the year FRER 1,271 10,548
Other comprehensive FREMEME

income/(loss) for the year: W (i) -
Exchange differences on translation of BREMBRERZINEE

financial statements to presentation EEXCZERERE

currency 527 (11,706)

Total comprehensive income/(loss) FRE2ERE(FR)

for the year FAk G 1,798 (1,158)
Attributable to: FEAG
Owners of the Company KABEER A 881 (2,841)
Minority interest DERER 917 1,683
1,798 (1,158)
The notes on pages 51 to 160 form part of these financial statements. FS1R160B 2T AMBRE 2 —HD °
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B BRR R

At 31 December 2009 R-_ZZTNF+-_A=+—H
2009 2008
—EEhE —EENF
Note RMB’' 000 RMB’ 000
B 5 FrRARM FrARY
Non-current assets ERBEE
Fixed assets BETEE 14(a)
— Other property, plant and equipment e ERR YL 103,773 113,759
— Investment property —REWE 220,867 215,589
324,640 329,348
Prepaid lease payments AR ERIE 14(f) 9,641 7,972
Available-for-sale financial assets AR ESREE 16 19,100 21,371
353,381 358,691
Current assets REEE
Inventories eSS 17 62,870 89,975
Trade and other receivables E S EBIR R R E AL
FEMGRIR 18 175,355 126,199
Prepaid lease payments JER & FE 14(f) 266 222
Tax recoverable Al U e 7 18 23(a) 8 3,905
Pledged bank deposits EEBRITER 19 5,404 5,578
Deposits with banks RITIE
(maturity over 3 months) (BB BE=@A®%) 1,707 980
Cash and cash equivalents ReReFMEER 20 98,736 78,393
344,346 305,252
Current liabilities REEE
Bank borrowings RITEE 22 155,646 139,458
Trade and other payables B 5 IR R EAh,
FET SRR 21 53,038 53,217
208,684 192,675
Net current assets MEEEFE 135,662 112,577
Total assets less current liabilities REERREARE 489,043 471,268
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Bank borrowings RITIEE 22 123,772 104,683
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIBEE F 23(b) 7,059 7,964
130,831 112,647
NET ASSETS BEFE 358,212 358,621
ETREREMRAT 2009 F R 45




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B BRR R

At 31 December 2009 R-ZETHF+_-_A=+—H

2009 2008
—EZAE ZZETNF
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
B FRARY FTARE
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of AATEEAEMLERS
the Company
Share capital A A 59,460 59,460
Reserves i 236,050 237,376
295,510 296,836
Minority interest DR ERER 62,702 61,785
TOTAL EQUITY MR 358,212 358,621

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23 April TEeN_—_T-EENA-F=BHER

Q
S

=

2010 BRI -

Hsiao Ming-chih Lai Yueh-hsing R HER

Director Director EFE EF

The notes on pages 51 to 160 form part of these financial statements. FES1E160B 2 M AMBRME 2 —3H -
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Statement of Financial Position

B %% AR R &R

At 31 December 2009 R-ZTTHF+_-_A=+—H

2009 2008
—EZTAE ZEENF
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
B 5 FRARY FTARE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R A 14(b) 1,009 2
Investments in subsidiaries KRB RARZIRE 15 198,909 201,206
199,918 201,208
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H fth fE Y 5018 18 187 240
Amounts due from subsidiaries I NGI R 15 5,355 7,141
Pledged bank deposits EEARITER 19 5,404 4,120
Cash and cash equivalents ReMReFEER 20 4,002 4,996
14,948 16,497
Current liabilities REEE
Bank borrowings RITEE 22 6,866 6,866
Other payables H fth fE 3R 18 21 14,518 30,850
21,384 37,716
Net current liabilities REBEEFEE (6,436) (21,219)
NET ASSETS EEFE 193,482 179,989
EQUITY B
Equity attributable to owners of ARREEAELESR
the parent 25(a)
Share capital f& s 59,460 59,460
Reserves fEE 134,022 120,529
TOTAL EQUITY R 193,482 179,989

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23 April

2010

Hsiao Ming-chih
Director

The notes on pages 51 to 160 form part of these financial statements.

Lai Yueh-hsing
Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

A7 . _
< For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZE—_ZEZNF+_A=+—HILLFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
AAREEAER
Statutory
Statutory public Proposed
Share Share  Special  surplus  welfare Exchange Retained final Minority Total
capital premium  reserve  reserve fund  reserve profits ~ dividend Total  interests equity
Bk DURR
BE RGEE HARE FELARE PELEE ERRR REEN KBRS E-h BE  AEs
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
FTRIARE TTARE TTARE TRARY TTARE TTARE TLARE TRARY THARE TTARE FLARY
At 1 January 2008 RZEZ\E-A-B 59,460 82,345 67,570 19,525 4,950 (7312) 78,065 11,520 316,123 56,836 372,959
Capital contribution —Hk2ERBAR
received by a non-wholly BOUBRTE
owned subsidiary from
minority shareholders - - - - - - - - - 3,266 3,266
Appropriations 2 - - - 1,225 - = (1,225) = = = =
Total comprehensive loss FNZABREE
for the year - - - - - (10,063 7222 - (2,841) 1,683 (1,158)
Dividend paid (note 11(b)) BARRE (EE11(0) - - - - - - - (11,50 (11,50) - (11,520
Dividend declared to AP ERESR R A
minority shareholder - - - - - - (4,926 4,926 - - -
Dividend paid to ERSEREZRE
minority shareholder - - - - - - - (4926)  (4,926) - (4,926)
At 31 December 2008 RZFENF+-A=1-H 59,460 82,345 67,570 20,750 4950 (17375 79,136 - 29,336 61,785 358,621
At 1 January 2009 RZZTNF-A-H 59,460 82,345 67,570 20,750 4950 (17,375 79,136 - 296,836 61,785 358,621
Appropriations P - - - (72) - - 72 = = = =
Total comprehensive income FREENEEE
for the year - - - - - 1391 (510) - 881 917 1,798
Dividend declared to AP EREE R KA
minority shareholder - - - - - - (2,207) 2,207 - - -
Dividend paid to ERPEREZRE
minority shareholder - - - - - - - (2.207) (2,207 - (2,207)
At 31 December 2009 R=BEAE+=A=1-H 59,460 82,345 67,570 20,678 4,950  (15984) 76491 - 295510 62,702 358212
The notes on pages 51 to 160 form part of these financial statements. E5121608 2 M RAEX M BIRE 2 — B
ﬁ °
-
||
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEBRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2009 BZE—_ZEZTNF+_A=+—HILFE

2009 2008
—EENEF —EENF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
P& FTrRARY FrARE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES e
Profit before taxation R A 3,344 26,307
Adjustments for: FEE
Interest income 2 WA (590) (4,513)
Dividend income from ETEFZBRERA
listed securities - (56)
Finance costs & A 4,913 19,388
Depreciation e 13,814 12,684
Amortisation of prepaid lease TR EFRIE 2 #
payments 266 222
Impairment loss on trade and Z 5 ERIRR R EA
other receivables JEUR 3R 2 R E B 1R 1,116 667
Reversal of impairment loss on BOE SRR R
trade and other receivables HAh e WG IE 2
VERIEN SR (55) -
Write down of inventories WRFE 421 34,821
Reversal of write down of # B 17 & MUk
inventories (30,321) -
Impairment loss on AR ESREEY
available-for-sale financial assets AR A 2,288 13,956
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of HEBRTEEZEIE,/
fixed assets (Y zk) %58 918 (72)
Valuation gain on investment "EYE 2 HENE
property - (36,655)
Net loss on derivative financial TESMT A EE
instrument R - 386
Foreign exchange loss/(gain) &5 (k) 311 (2,766)
OPERATING (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE EEESE A LY (BR), B8R
CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL (3,575) 64,369
Decrease in inventories GFERL 57,005 44,418
(Increase)/decrease in trade and H 5 FEWUIR 58 % E At FE UL
other receivables FRIE () R (50,217) 269,828
Decrease in trading securities R GEBEH R - 15,633
Decrease in trade and other payables B IR R E AL FET
HIER D (179) (111,130)
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS &E& 5z R £ 3,034 283,118
Income tax recovered B U FTE 1,918 L
Income tax paid B PTEH (1,160) (13,598)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM RETHFMEBzREFE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 3,792 269,520
|
EDERAERLAT 2009 F R
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

REEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HZE—ZTZTHF+_-_A=+—HILFE

2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 FTRARY FrARE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETEE
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets HEREEEEMGRIEA 6 144
Payment for the purchase of fixed assets B A BT & E Z 5K (7,985) (12,559)
Payment for the purchase of BAKRBEDE 2K
investment property - (164,979)
Payment for the purchase of BATHEESREE
available-for-sale financial assets PARE: = (35,074)
Increase in deposits with banks RITER (ZIHA
(maturity over 3 months) E={E A1) 38 hn (727) (980)
Decrease in pledged bank deposits BRI IR 174 40,959
Interest received B F 8 590 4,513
Dividend received from listed securities FHRESMERE - 56
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING RETBFAZREFE
ACTIVITIES (7,942) (167,920)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES il & 5E B
Proceeds from new bank borrowings BT PTIS FR 1A 398,418 1,192,199
Repayment of bank borrowings BEPBITEES (363,141) (1,259,460)
Dividend paid to owners of the Company B ARQAEE AZKE = (11,520)
Dividend paid to minority shareholder ERDEREZRE (2,207) (4,926)
Interest paid B E (4,913) (19,388)
Capital contributions received by —EEEEWBARE
a non-wholly owned subsidiary from LEREFE
minority shareholders - 3,266
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/ METERE (FTA)Z
(USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES HEFH 28,157 (99,829)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RekREeEEEREM
CASH EQUIVALENTS FE 24,007 1,771
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—B—HBZRER
AT | JANUARY ReEHEEH 20 78,393 67,461
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE IBEZSBH o HE
RATES CHANGES (3,664) 9,161
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT Rt+t=-—A=+—-H2
31 DECEMBER ReRREEEER 20 98,736 78,393

The notes on pages 51 to 160 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B WS KA

For the year ended 31 December 2009 BZE—_ZEZTNF+_A=+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Mayer Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its registered
office is PO Box 309GT, Ugland House, South Church Street,
George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands, British West Indies.
The Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are
principally engaged in manufacturing and trading of steel pipes,
steel sheets and other products made of steel, property investment
and leasing of aircrafts.

The Company has its primary listing on Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™).

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange. A summary of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments and
interpretations which are or have become effective. It has
also issued certain new and revised HKFRSs which are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note
3 provides information on initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected
in these financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZEZE—_ZEZNF+_A=+—HILLFE
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESTTHE (&)
(Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(b) MBHRENEREE

52

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2009 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries.

Items included in the financial statements of each entity
in the Group are measured using the currency that best
reflects the economic substance of the underlying events
and circumstances relevant to the entity (the “functional
currency”). The functional currencies of the Company
and its major subsidiaries are Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi (“RMB") respectively. The consolidated financial
statements are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi
("RMB’000"), unless otherwise stated.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that the
investment property is stated at its fair value as explained in
the accounting policies set out below (see note 2(g)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Mayer Holdings Limited Annual Report 2009
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 BZE—_ZEZNF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(9]

(Continued)

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of material
adjustment in the next year are discussed in note 35.

Subsidiaries and minority interest

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights
that presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

Minority interests represent the portion of the net assets
of subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not owned
by the Company, whether directly or indirectly through
subsidiaries, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole having
a contractual obligation in respect of those interests that
meets the definition of a financial liability. Minority interests
are presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from equity attributable to
the owners of the Company. Minority interests in the results
of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
income statement and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the year between
minority interests and the owners of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 BZEZE—_ZEZNF+_A=+—HILLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

(d)

Mayer Holdings Limited

Subsidiaries and minority interest (Continued)

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the minority’s
interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the excess, and any
further losses applicable to the minority, are charged against
the Group’s interest except to the extent that the minority
has a binding obligation to, and is able to, make additional
investment to cover the losses. If the subsidiary subsequently
reports profits, the Group’s interest is allocated all such profits
until the minority's share of losses previously absorbed by the
Group has been recovered.

Loans from holders of minority interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as financial
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position
in accordance with note 2(l) depending on the nature of the
liability.

In the Company’'s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(h)(ii)).

Other investments in equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments in
equity securities, other than investments in subsidiaries, are as
follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at cost,
which is their transaction price unless fair value can be more
reliably estimated using valuation techniques whose variables
include only data from observable markets. Cost includes
attributable transaction costs, except where indicated
otherwise below. These investments are subsequently
accounted for as follows, depending on their classification:

Annual Report 2009
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 BZE—_ZEZNF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESTTHE (&)
(Continued)

(d) Other investments in equity securities (Continued) (d)

Hi A EHRE (])

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end of each
reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not include
any dividends or interest earned on these investments as
these are recognised in accordance with the policies set out in
note 2(q)(iii) and (iv) respectively.

Investments in equity securities that do not have a listed
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured are recognised in the statement of
financial position at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(h)

(i)).

Other investments in securities are classified as available-for-
sale equity securities and are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs. At the end of each reporting period
the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised directly in equity. Dividend income from
these investments is recognised in profit or loss in accordance
with the policy set out in note 2(q)(iii) and, where these
investments are interest-bearing, interest calculated using
the effective interest method is recognised in profit or loss
in accordance with the policy set out in note 2(qg)(iv). When
these investments are derecognised, the cumulative gain or
loss previously recognised directly in equity is recognised in
profit or loss.

For an investment in equity instruments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market, or derivatives
linked to such equity instruments, it is measured at cost
less impairment (because its fair value cannot be measured
reliably).

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the
Group and/or the Company commits to purchase/sell the
investments or when they expire.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZE—_ZEZNF+_A=+—HILLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

()

Mayer Holdings Limited

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 2(g)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future use and
property that is being constructed or developed for future use
as investment property.

Investment properties are stated in the statement of financial
position at fair value, unless they are still in the course of
construction or development at the end of the reporting
period and their fair value cannot be reliably determined at
that time. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value
or from the retirement or disposal of an investment property
is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from investment
properties is accounted for as described in note 2(q)ii).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property is
accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease, and the
same accounting policies are applied to that interest as are
applied to other investment properties leased under finance
leases. Lease payments are accounted for as described in note

2(g).

Other property, plant and equipment

Other property, plant and equipment are stated in the
statement of financial position at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses (see note

2(h)(ii)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs.

Annual Report 2009

2. TESTHEE (&)

(e) WEWE

(f)

BRENMEERBEHUERSMES
5B AERBES AR,
BEAREE TR HET (R
it2(g)) - B¥E B AT ARRE R K
Rzt RIEERRIIERE
EMEBER/RKAEZME

BRIFREMERBERARDE
REGZRERBER - BERREE
ASEEEAAEE SAIRE
MEZ R BERMBARARA
R RVPEEHMELIRED
EREINEMELZEMNAE
KRB RPHER - REWMEZH
FRAIRHTE2()IDFTEE A

WAKEREEEMROTE R
W) R s DABRERAE € WA K3k
BARIE(E  BREDRIRERYE
EERELSREDE  LRIEA
k- WRBERREMENTMY
ERESARSBINEEREHED
THRE—K MEARE#EER
S BREERARNEREHLY
THEZEMBREMEEMER -
S LK FE2(g) T8 E AR ©

Hith% - SR RE

H b - R RRBIRK AR
ZETERZFORERE (RHE
2(h)(ii)) AR °

BITEEZME HERREBZ
A BREMERA  BEST
A - R ARE R - Y] A AR
KB IR B A R IR 1B IR B AT e
RERI A - ARGEE LI E
b EERARTEERA



Notes to the Financial Statements

B WS KA

For the year ended 31 December 2009 BZE—_ZEZTNF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Other property, plant and equipment (Continued) (f)
Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an

item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the

difference between the net proceeds on disposal and the

carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or

loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of

property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual

value, if any, using the straight line method over their

estimated useful lives as follows:

— freehold land is not depreciated;

Building and factory premises EFEBE
Leasehold improvements MEMERE
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment i - RERFA
Plant and machinery WeS R A 1E
Motor vehicles AE

Aircrafts et

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residue value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment under construction and pending installation and
is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses (see
note 2(h)(ii)), if any. Cost includes the costs of construction
of buildings, the costs of plant and machinery and interest
charges arising from borrowings used to finance these assets
during the period of construction or installation and testing, if
any. No provision for depreciation is made on construction in
progress until such time as the relevant assets are completed
and are available for intended use. When the assets
concerned are brought into use, the costs are transferred
to other property, plant and equipment and depreciated in
accordance with the policy as stated above.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 BZE—_ZEZNF+_A=+—HILLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESTTHE (&)

(Continued)

(g) Leased assets

(g) HEEE

IMAKEEEERBRLHETH
FAATHER - Al B RS
— Z B FRIA TN R 69 E HA R A B
HEEE ARALH(BE-EX
ZE—RINRZ) ERB M
B -ARBZERIDENEHRL
BZEEARFEMEL - XA

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form

of alease. WEBETHETEBHEE AR
= o
(i)  Classification of assets leased to the Group () AEEHEABZEEZSHE

RASERBHERAZE
EmME  WAREELEEBK
O HA R AR NS
BEAKH AEBEER
DEAREREBROFELZ
BEE - TREBRARNE

Assets held by the Group under leases which transfer
to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group
are classified as operating leases, with the following

58

the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from the previous
leasee.

Mayer Holdings Limited Annual Report 2009

exceptions: Bz RR LT REER
ZHEDDEAKLERL
HEA T IR A1 -
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otherwise meet the definition of an investment REREMEERZ
property is classified as an investment property W THRERIME S
on a property-by-property basis and, if classified BESBRIREME
as investment property, is accounted for as if held EMEw# B AEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 BZE—_ZEZTNF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EESTBUR (H)
(Continued)
(9) Leased assets (Continued) (9) HEEE (E)
(i)  Operating lease charges (i) ARSI T
Where the Group has the use of assets under operating NEARBEIRBEEHOFE
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to REEZIER RIREHEE
profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting e 2 (& 710 & B P&
periods covered by the lease term, except where an ECert AR UEEH
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern N ABEESD EHEE
of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease MEEE R KA E
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an BEMES 2 WaE R RIBR
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made. Hho BINER 2 T E EEN 18
Contingent rentals are written off as an expense of the mERPERABHEENTF
accounting period in which they are incurred. B — & - HBEHERE
EE 2 G5 EAR TR i
The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease BEBEEHNFE L T2
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of WA TR EBHNAE
the lease term except where the property is classified as UL  MEVMEEDWIIE
an investment property. TEMEERSI
(h) Impairment of assets (h) BERE
(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and other () BRAZEZKEREMENK
receivables R 1E
Investments in equity securities (other than investments VAR 7 55 8 85 B AR 1 IR 2 IR
in subsidiaries: see note 2(h)(ii)) and other current KEHRE (BRIEERKNE
and non-current receivables that are stated at cost A RHEE2(h) ()R EAMA
or amortised cost or are classified as available-for- T ED K2 FE R B I U R IE 3k 5
sale equity securities are reviewed at the end of BRAHEERAIZFES
each reporting period to determine whether there is —WEBRERE - ORE
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence ERAREBEZTEER B
of impairment includes observable data that comes to BzRBREREAEER
the attention of the Group about one or more of the B BBUAT—IBXZIEE
following loss events: BEHZHREE

ETERAMRAT 2009 & R 59
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZE—_ZEZNF+_A=+—HILLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Mayer Holdings Limited

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and other

receivables (Continued)

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is

determined and recognised as follows:

For unlisted equity securities carried at cost,
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset
and the estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset where the effect of discounting is
material. Impairment losses for equity securities are
not reversed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 BZE—_ZEZTNF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Impairment of assets (Continued)

()  Impairment of investments in equity securities and other

receivables (Continued)

For trade and other receivables and other financial
assets carried at amortised cost, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect of
discounting is material. The assessment is made
collectively where financial assets carried at
amortised cost share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZE—_ZEZNF+_A=+—HILLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESTTHE (&)

(Continued)

(h) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(h)y BERE &)

62

Impairment of investments in equity securities and other
receivables (Continued)

—  For available-for-sale equity securities which are
stated at fair value, when a decline in the fair value
has been recognised directly in equity and there
is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
the cumulative loss that had been recognised
directly in equity shall be removed from equity
and recognised in profit or loss even though the
financial asset has not been derecognised. The
amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised
in profit or loss is the difference between the

() REZBZREREMELZ

T B 1 (%)

— BERAFEIRZATHE
HERARES  EQF
BETREEZR#Ex
RUBEHREBRTE
ERE RIRERER
R CHERBREER
rEash kR - AWRE
BERAER (HASE
BENRBUEHER) °
RBHERAERZ RHE

acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment EBEHBEIIEENR
and amortisation) and current fair value, less any (MBRERRREERE R

impairment loss on that asset previously recognised
in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such assets
is recognised directly in equity.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors included
within trade and other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded using
an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied that
recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against trade debtors directly and any
amounts held in the allowance account relating to that
debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other changes
in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly are recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 BZE—_ZEZTNF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment (other than
properties carried at revalued amounts); and

— investments in subsidiaries.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher
of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZE—_ZEZNF+_A=+—HILLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Mayer Holdings Limited

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying amount of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs to sell, or value in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on

the Stock Exchange, the Group is required to prepare

an interim financial report in compliance with HKAS

34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the first six
months of the financial year. At the end of the interim
period, the Group applies the same impairment testing,

recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end
of the financial year (see note 2(h)(i) and (ii)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 BZE—_ZEZTNF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Impairment of assets (Continued)
(ii)  Interim financial reporting and impairment (Continued)

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of available-for-sale equity securities carried at
cost are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the
case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed only at
the end of the financial year to which the interim period
relates.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZE—_ZEZNF+_A=+—HILLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

(k)

)

(m)

Mayer Holdings Limited

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts, except where
the receivables are interest-free loans made to related
parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect
of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the
receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 2(h)(i)).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 2(p)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
the consolidated statement of cash flows.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 BZE—_ZEZTNF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the binomial lattice
model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the share options,
the total estimated fair value of the share options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to the profit or loss for the year
under review, unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting date,
the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of share options that vest
(with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in
the capital reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium account) or
the option expires (when it is released directly to retained
profits).
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 BZE—_ZEZNF+_A=+—HILLFE
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESTTHE (&)
(Continued)

(n) Employee benefits (Continued) n) EEER

(o)

(i) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result
of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal
plan which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 BZE—_ZEZTNF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided that those differences relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods
into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary differences
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences
are taken into account if they relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZEZE—_ZEZNF+_A=+—HILLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESTTHE (&)

(Continued)

(o) Income tax (Continued)

(o) FrB® ()

70

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

—  different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
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tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or FFERBERELEHRIEEE
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets EESERARNBERLER
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or T8 & e A DA UK B A9 B S

realise and settle simultaneously.
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B WS KA

For the year ended 31 December 2009 BZE—_ZEZNF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a specified
debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair
value of the guarantee (being the transaction price,
unless the fair value can otherwise be reliably estimated)
is initially recognised as deferred income within trade
and other payables. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the
Group's policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or receivable,
an immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on
initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognised
in accordance with note 2(p)(ii) if and when (i) it
becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the Group under the guarantee, and (ii)
the amount of that claim on the Group is expected to
exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZEZE—_ZEZNF+_A=+—HILLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities (Continued)

(ii)

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

(q) Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow

to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be

measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as

follows:

(i)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises which is taken to be the point in
time when the customer has accepted the goods and
the related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 BZE—_ZEZNF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income
in the accounting period in which they are earned.

Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established. Dividend income from listed
investments is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Service income

Service income is recognised when the services are
rendered.

Government subsidy

Subsidy income is recognised as revenue when there is
reasonable assurance that it will be recieved.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZEZE—_ZEZNF+_A=+—HILLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

(s)

Mayer Holdings Limited

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss, except those arising from
foreign currency borrowings used to hedge a net investment
in a foreign operation which are recognised directly in equity.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
determined.

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the results of the Group’s operations not
denominated in RMB are translated into RMB, i.e. the
presentation currency of the Group, at the average exchange
rates for the year. Statement of financial position items are
translated into RMB at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised directly in a separate component
of equity.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred, except to the extent that they are
capitalised as being directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intend use or
sale.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 BZE—_ZEZNF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

(t)

Borrowing costs (Continued)

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Related parties

For the purpose of these financial statements, parties are
considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through
one or more intermediaries, to control the Group or
exercise significant influence over the Group in making
financial and operating policy decisions, or has joint
control over the Group;

(i)  the Group and the party are subject to common control;

(i) the party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture
in which the Group is a venturer;

(iv) the party is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent, or a close family
member of such an individual, or is an entity under the
control, joint control or significant influence of such

individuals;
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZEZE—_ZEZNF+_A=+—HILLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)

(u)

Mayer Holdings Limited

Related parties (Continued)

(v) the party is a close family member of a party referred
to in (i) or is an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for
the benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity
that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified from
the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
chief operating decision maker for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 BZE—_ZEZNF+_A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has adopted the following new and revised Standards,

Amendments and Interpretations (“new and revised HKFRSs") that

are first effective for the current accounting period.

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007)

HKAS 23 (Revised 2007)

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27
(Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

HKFRS 8
HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKAS 32 & 1 (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 9 & HKAS 39

(Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 13

HK(FRIC) — Int 15

HK(FRIC) — Int 16

HK(IFRIC) — Int 18

Presentation of Financial
Statements
Borrowing Costs

Cost of an Investment in a
Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled
Entity or Associate

Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations

Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments

Operating Segments

Improvements to HKFRSs issued in
2008, except for the
amendment to HKFRS 5 which
is effective for annual periods
beginning or after 1 July 2009

Improvements to HKFRSs issued in
2009 in relation to the
amendment to paragraph 80 of
HKAS 39

Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on
Liquidation

Embedded Derivatives

Customer Loyalty Programmes

Agreements for the Construction
of Real Estate

Hedges of a Net Investment in a
Foreign Operation

Transfers of Assets from
Customers
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZEZE—_ZEZNF+_A=+—HILLFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3. ERFIRKBEBITEBYUI
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS W R (E)
(Continued)

Except as described below, the adoption of the new and revised BT ATEMEN ARSI R
RIETTEBMBREENHRERR

St EE e REZGEA Y

HKFRSs has had no material effect on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the current or prior accounting

periods. BHREWRERATE
The amendments to HKAS 23 and HKFRS 2 have had no material BB G ERIE2IFANE BT BHRE
impact on the Group’s financial statements as the amendments AR 25 VB AT 8 AR B B 15 e 5 O

BEATE ARZRFEITLBER
AEEBRERMZEFTHE -
PREROZEDSFAOT

and interpretations were consistent with policies already adopted
by the Group. The impact of the remainder of these developments
is as follows:

78

HKFRS 8 requires segment disclosure to be based on the
way that the Group’s chief operating decision maker regards
and manages the Group, with the amounts reported for
each reportable segment being the measures reported to
the Group’s chief operating decision maker for the purposes
of assessing segment performance and making decisions
about operating matters. This contrasts with the presentation
of segment information in prior years which was based on
a disaggregation of the Group’s financial statements into
segments based on related products and services and on
geographical areas. The adoption of HKFRS 8 has resulted in
the presentation of segment information in a manner that
is more consistent with internal reporting provided to the
Group's chief operating decision maker, and has resulted
in additional reportable segments being identified and
presented (see note 13). Corresponding amounts have been
provided on a basis consistent with the revised segment
information.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 BZE—_ZEZNF+_A=+—HILFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

As a result of the adoption of HKAS 1 (Revised 2007), details
of changes in equity during the year arising from transactions
with equity shareholders in their capacity as such have been
presented separately from all other income and expenses
in a revised consolidated statement of changes in equity.
All other items of income and expense are presented in the
consolidated income statement, if they are recognised as part
of profit or loss for the year, or otherwise in a new primary
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Corresponding amounts have been restated to
conform to the new presentation. This change in presentation
has no effect on reported profit or loss, total income and
expense or net assets for any period presented.

As a result of the adoption of the amendments to HKFRS
7, the financial statements include expanded disclosures
in note 26(f) about the fair value measurement of the
Group's financial instruments, categorising these fair value
measurements into a three-level fair value hierarchy according
to the extent to which they are based on observable market
data. The Group has taken advantage of the transitional
provisions set out in the amendments to HKFRS 7, under
which comparative information for the newly required
disclosures about the fair value measurements of financial
instruments has not been provided.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZEZE—_ZEZNF+_A=+—HILLFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

. The “Improvements to HKFRSs (2008)" comprise a number of
amendments to a range of HKFRSs. Of these, the following
amendments have resulted in changes to the Group’s
accounting policies:

— As a result of amendments to HKAS 40, Investment
property, investment property which is under
construction will be carried at fair value at the earlier of
when the fair value first becomes reliably measurable
and the date of completion of the property. Any gain or
loss will be recognised in profit or loss, consistent with
the policy adopted for all other investment properties
carried at fair value. Previously such property was
carried at cost until the construction was completed,
at which time it was fair valued with any gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. As the Group does
not currently have any investment property under
construction, this change in policy has no impact on net
assets or profit or loss for any of the periods presented.

— The amendments to HKAS 27 have removed the
requirement that dividends out of pre-acquisition profits
should be recognised as a reduction in the carrying
amount of the investment in the investee, rather than
as income. As a result, as from 1 January 2009, all
dividends receivable from subsidiaries, whether out of
pre- or post-acquisition profits, will be recognised in
the Company’s profit or loss and the carrying amount
of the investment in the investee will not be reduced
unless that carrying amount is assessed to be impaired
as a result of the investee declaring the dividend. In
such cases, in addition to recognising dividend income
in profit or loss, the Company would recognise an
impairment loss. In accordance with the transitional
provisions in the amendment, this new policy will be
applied prospectively to any dividends receivable in the
current or future periods and previous periods have not
been restated.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 BZE—_ZEZNF+_A=+—HILFE

TURNOVER 4. EXH
Turnover represents the sales value of goods supplied to customers EEBERRMNBEPHEZERNIEE
and rental income. The amount of each significant category of BEARESBA -FA EEEHE
revenue recognised in turnover during the year is as follows: R EBFZWHERNAT :
2009 2008
—EEAE —TE)F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

FRARY TTAR®

Sales of goods: HEEMm
— steel — $ 418,392 652,220
- others -Efh 830 2,825
Gross rentals from leasing of aircrafts R E 2 e Rz 8,033 8,171
Gross rentals from investment property REYE S BE 8,330 3,977

435,585 667,193

ETERERAF 2009 F R




82

Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HE—ZTZTHF+_-_A=+—HILtFE

5. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME 5. Hfhrzm R H AU A F5E
2009 2008
—EEhE —EENF
RMB’' 000 RMB’ 000
FrARYE FrARE
Other revenue H b £
Interest income on bank deposits |ITFEFZFEWA 590 4,513
Total interest income on financial assets Ik A FEHABZRR
not at fair value through profit or loss Z B REEZNEWA
4B =E 590 4,513
Consultancy fee income EISE- N 356 437
Commission income HelkA 1 =
Government subsidy B 7 B 661 =
Dividend income from listed securities EWEFZBRERA - 56
Sales of scrap materials 5 BE Rt 4,384 6,902
Sundry income MBI 838 2,275
6,830 14,183
Other net income Hal A F58
Net foreign exchange gain P& W W e F 5E - 2,766
Net gain on disposal of fixed assets & Bl E & E 2 W e FE - 72
Reversal of impairment loss on trade JFEE W5 R 5 R L i JE W K A
and other receivables oL 1B 5 18 [B] 55 =
55 2,838
6,885 17,021
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 BZE—_ZEZNF+_A=+—HILFE

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting) the

BR Bt Al A

BBADENEIG, GEA) U TEIA:

following:
2009 2008
—EEhE —EENF
RMB’' 000 RMB’ 000
FrRARY FrARE
(a) Finance costs (a) BERA
Interest on bank borrowings AR THEZ2EEEZ
wholly repayable RITIEEZFE
— within five years —HFAN 2,353 15,457
— over five years —h&E% 2,560 3,931
Total interest expense on WIRATFEINABRRZ
financial liabilities not at fair cHEBEINBERAZRRE
value through profit or loss 4,913 19,388
(b) Staff costs (b) EERZE
Contributions to defined ) 7€ BB FUR IRET B gt 5k
contribution retirement plans 2,371 1,854
Salaries, wages and other benefits e R AEYETR 16,503 23,332
18,874 25,186
EDERAERLAAF 2009 FH
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 BZE—_ZEZNF+_A=+—HILLFE

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 6. BRBiAIEF ()
2009 2008
—EENF —ZEENF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FrRARY FTARE
(c) Other items (0 HfEAR
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEBN

— audit services — B RS 660 477

— other services — E ih AR 75 290 134
Cost of inventories* (see note 17) FERA (RHEE17) 385,416 603,338
Depreciation for property, plant W MREREBNE

and equipment 13,814 12,684
Amortisation of prepaid lease TEfT M & FRIE 2 #E i

payments 266 222
Operating leases charges: LEMROZ W -

minimum lease payments HEBEE K 990 1,351
Impairment loss on trade E 5 e YR 51 K At fE UL

and other receivables HIBZ REER 1,116 667
Impairment loss on available- AHESREEZ

for-sale financial assets VEREN, 5B 2,288 13,956
Gross rental income from "EMEZHS WAL

investment property less E X 1H1,321,0007T

direct outgoings of ARE(ZEZENF :

RMB1,321,000 2,072,000t A R #)

(2008: RMB2,072,000) (7,009) (1,905)
Write down of inventories Mo & 421 34,821
Reversal of write down of BOMRFE

inventories (30,321) -
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) P& BB (W) F58 311 (2,766)
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of tEBRTEEZER/

fixed assets (Yezs) F58 918 (72)
Net realised loss on disposal of HEXHEH 2EEFHR

trading securities b= - 2,256
Net loss on derivative financial TESBTACEEFE

instrument - 386

L Cost of inventories includes (i) RMB 15,689,000 (2008: RMB52,627,000) y 17 & R A B #E(i)15,689,0007T A R 5

relating to staff costs, depreciation, operating lease charges and write (ZZZ N\ 52,627,000 A R#) 2

down of inventories and (i) reversal of write down of inventories of BREBEEZE_ZTANF+_A=+—8

RMB30,321,000 (2008: RMBNil) for the year ended 31 December 2009 FEFEZEIREK HE KLEHE

which amount are also included in the respective total amounts disclosed A A RFEROR : (i) B BN T E

B 1 separately above or in note 6(b) for each of these types of expenses. 30,321,000t ARB (ZZEZNF : T T

ARE) - BEE et A LB R
2B RIBL S ERA IR iE6(b)F 5
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 BZE—_ZEZTNF+_A=+—HILFE

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME 7. ZREWBERZFIEH
STATEMENT

(@) Income tax in the consolidated income statement represents: (a) HZEWTZRZFBHA:
2009 2008
—ZEERF ZEENF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FrRARY FTARY
Current tax B EA B 18
- Hong Kong —&B% - -
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax — B EFTE - 6,989
— Other jurisdictions —Efh R AR 315 323
315 7,312
Under/(over) provision in BEEERBTIE
respect of prior years (HBEEEE)
- Hong Kong —&H - b~
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax —Fh Bl EEFRE R 1,980 4
— Other jurisdictions —Hm AL AR - 13
— Withholding tax —TEME 844 L8
2,824 13
Deferred tax (note 23(b)) IR FE B 18 (M 5E23(0))
— Current year —RFE = 8,434
— Attributable to a change — TR (R D58
in tax rate (1,066) e
(1,066) 8,434
Total #5 2,073 15,759
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 BZEZE—_ZEZNF+_A=+—HILLFE

7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT (Continued)
(@ Income tax in the consolidated income statement represents:
(Continued)

@)

Mayer Holdings Limited

On 26 June 2008, Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
the Revenue Bill 2008 and reduced corporate profits tax
rate from 17.5% to 16.5% which is effective from the
year of assessment 2008/09. No Hong Kong Profits Tax
has been provided for in the financial statements as the
Group has no assessable profits for the year (2008: Nil).

On 16 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of the
Tenth National People’s Congress promulgated the
Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC (the “New Tax
Law"), which became effective on 1 January 2008.
According to the New Tax Law, from 1 January 2008,
the standard enterprise income tax rate for enterprises
in the PRC was reduced from 33% to 25%. Further,
the State Council released the Implementation Rules
to the Enterprise Income Tax Law on 6 December 2007
and the Notice on the Implementation Rules of the
Grandfathering Relief under the Enterprise Income Tax
Law (Guo Fa [2007] No. 39) on 26 December 2007
(collectively, the “Implementation Rules”).

Under the New Tax Law and the Implementation
Rules, an entity established before 16 March 2007
that was entitled to preferential tax treatment prior
to promulgation of the New Tax Law is subject to
transitional tax rates commencing in 2008 (“Transitional
Tax Rate”) before the new enterprise income tax rate of
25% applies. The Transitional Tax Rate of Guangzhou
Mayer Corporation Limited (“Guangzhou Mayer”) is
18%, 20%, 22% and 24% in 2008, 2009, 2010 and
2011 onwards respectively. From 2012 and onwards,
Guangzhou Mayer will be subject to income tax rate of
25%.

Annual Report 2009
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 BZE—_ZEZNF+_A=+—HILFE

7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT (Continued)
(@ Income tax in the consolidated income statement represents:
(Continued)

(iif)

(iv)

Vietnam Mayer Company Limited (“Vietnam Mayer")
is entitled to a tax concession period in which it is
fully exempted from Vietnam income tax for 3 years
starting from its first profit-making year (after net off
accumulated tax losses), followed by a 50% reduction
in the Vietnam income tax for the next 7 years. The
first profit making year of Vietnam Mayer is 2008.
Accordingly, no provision for Vietnam income tax
has been made as Vietnam Mayer is exempted from
Vietnam income tax in 2008 and 2009.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions are calculated at
the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

Pursuant to the new PRC Corporate Income Tax
Law which took effect from 1 January 2008, a 10%
withholding tax was levied on dividends declared to
foreign enterprise investors from the PRC effective 1
January 2008. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty arrangement between
the PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign enterprise
investors.

On 22 February 2008, Caishui (2008) No.1 was
promulgated by the PRC tax authorities to specify that
dividends declared and remitted out of the PRC from the
retained earnings as at 31 December 2007 determined
based on the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations are
exempted from the withholding tax.

7. REWFERZHAES (B)

() HAWBRZABHRG: (B)

(iii)

(iv)

EHERERLA

Vietnam Mayer Company
Limited ([ EXEZ])AIZA
MBERE B ERE
ERERNFEE (MK RFAH
BHER) EFT=FAN2H82
%%ﬁj'iﬁﬁ SH - BRELFA

R %—+ 2 BB e -
—EEN\FREEEXDZH
EENFE - Bk AR =
ZENEFRZEBEZNFRH
MEMEN  WEMEME
i o

H i BARE R E L 2 BiIAR
ERMAEAER CRITHE

o

u§r°

BRER-_ZTZENF—-H—H
ERZHTBELEEMBHR
%z BZFEN\F—-A—H
AR ELERES
FIRRE R EZEREEK
10%IEFIH © fisf o B B HNE
CEREEMBAIZERZ
REARBESLH - AA]
HEEBHH R -

RZEENFZ-_A=+=
B - T 7 A 0 4 B A
[2008]F15% - MERZZEE
+tFE+ZA=+—HBERE
BT SR FE A B E N2
RE - REBEBHRREBER
EHETE A ERATE
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZEZE—_ZEZNF+_A=+—HILLFE

7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT (Continued)
(@ Income tax in the consolidated income statement represents:
(Continued)
(v) (Continued)
As at 31 December 2009, deferred tax liabilities of
RMBNil (2008: RMBNil) have been recognised in respect
of the tax that would be payable on the distribution of
the retained profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiary.

Deferred tax liabilities of RMB654,000 have not been
recognised, as the Company controls the dividend
policy of the subsidiary and it has been determined
that it is probable that certain of the profits earned by
the Group's PRC subsidiary for the year from 1 January
2009 to 31 December 2009 will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future.

Mayer Holdings Limited Annual Report 2009
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 BZE—_ZEZNF+_A=+—HLFE

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME 7. ZREWBRZAEH (&)

STATEMENT (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at by REAMIXFE MBI LEAS

the applicable tax rates: B A 2 HiR -
2009 2008
“EEAE  —TE)F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FRARY FTARKE
Profit before taxation B 758 A1 e A 3,344 26,307
Notional tax on profit before EREBAEDMEERAR
taxation, calculated at the rates w2 R - BERTBLAT
applicable to profits in the tax BHFE 2 BEMIE
jurisdictions concerned 1,249 15,008
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses N A 0% Sk H = Fi 18 57 28 1,484 12,700
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARBRAZHIBEZE (6,911) (12,329)
Tax effect of unused tax losses REVA™ B RER ZHIE
not recognised BB MIEBERE 3,958 732
Tax effect of profits entitled to 7 Al = BLIE TR S )
tax exemption in Vietnam BB R (169) (365)
Tax effect of utilisation of BN AT FE H R iR
deductible temporary ZAIMBERER Y
differences not recognised MIBTE
in prior years 856 =
Decrease in opening deferred tax AN E T 75| BEY)
liability resulting from R IBE R
a decrease in applicable tax rate (1,066) -
Under provision in prior years BEFEZBRETR 1,980 13
Others Hitb (152) F
1,229 15,759
Under provision in prior years BEFECBRETR
Withholding tax TEHRR 844 -
2,073 15,759
ETERAERAT 2009 F R
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‘é'f For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZEZE—_ZEZNF+_A=+—HILLFE
8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 8. EEM<E
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the BEEBATGANEI6HEEECES
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: MemT :
Year ended 31 December 2009
BE_EENF+T-A=T-HLEFE
Salaries,
allowances
and  Retirement
Directors’ benefits scheme
Note fees in kind contributions Total
e 2R
Lo Eswme BEMAE BRGEMER it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
TRAR®E TrRAR® TFTaARY® TFTRARY
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Hsiao Ming-chih BRELE - 88 - 88
Mr. Lai Yueh-hsing FEEEL A - 528 - 528
Mr. Lo Haw BERE - 309 - 309
Dr. Lin Meng-chang MREE T 0) = = = =
Mr. Lu Wen-yi AXELE - 158 - 158
Mr. Chiang Jen-chin BLCRAE - 264 - 264
Mr. Cheng Dar-terng BEgrE - 159 - 159
Non-executive director FHITES
Mr. Huang Chun-fa BEBRLE - 88 - 88
Independent non-executive  BIYFHTES
directors
Mr. Lin Sheng-bin MREER 2 A 26 - - 26
Mr. Huang Jui-hsiang EiRtEEE 26 - - 26
Mr. Alvin Chiu HBELE 201 - - 201
253 1,594 - 1,847
A
-

Mayer Holdings Limited Annual Report 2009
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 BZE—_ZEZNF+_A=+—HLFE

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 8. EXNE (&)
Year ended 31 December 2008
BE-TR\E+-A=t+—BILEE

Salaries,
allowances
and Retirement
Directors’ benefits scheme
Note fees inkind  contributions Total
e 2R
B & EETkA EWMAE RIREHEIHK st

RMB' 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
TEARE TFTRARE FTEARE TrARE

Executive directors BITES

Mr. Hsiao Ming-chih BREEE = 104 = 104
Mr. Lai Yueh-hsing FEEEL A - 348 - 348
Mr. Lo Haw BERE - 313 - 313
Dr. Lin Meng-chang MEEELT () = 386 = 386
Mr. Lu Wen-yi AXELE - 161 - 161
Mr. Chiang Jen-chin BLCRAE - 402 - 402
Mr. Cheng Dar-terng BEgiE = 161 = 161
Non-executive director FHITES

Mr. Huang Chun-fa BHEYRLE = 89 = 89

Independent non-executive  BIYFHTES

directors
Mr. Lin Sheng-bin MREER 2 A4 27 - - 27
Mr. Huang Jui-hsiang AL E 27 - - 27
Mr. Alvin Chiu HRELE 203 = = 203
257 1,964 - 2,221
Note: M5 -
(i)  Resigned on 11 February 2009. () EBER-ZEZAF_A+—BHET-

ETERERAA 2009 F R
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 BZE—_ZEZNF+_A=+—HILLFE

92

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 8. EEM= (&)

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, none of the directors held RZEENFRZZEENFE+TZA

any share options under the Company’s share option scheme. The =+ —H BMEEERELAQRZE

details of the share option scheme are set out in note 24 to the IRABERT BIRF A AR AR - BEARERT

financial statements. 2 FIBEN I BmEMT24 -

For the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008, no emolument REBEEZZETZNFR-_ZEZNF+ =

was paid to the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining A=+—HLEHFE WUERESEZH

the Company or as compensation for loss of office. There was no e AER MBS R IMBEARR R Z

arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive any BESERBRBEE REBEEZ_ZEZT

remuneration for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008. NERZZFENF+ZA=+—HL
FETREEHEXRERENS 2
L o

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 9. BEeHFMA L

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, TEEREESHFMALFH  MEAEK

two (2008: none of them) were directors of the Company whose
emoluments are included in the disclosures in note 8 above. The
emoluments of the remaining three (2008: five) individuals were as
follows:

RAER(ZTT)N\F  E) - HHM
N EXHFSZHE - AT =% (=
TTN\F 7HB) AT ZHBOT -

2009 2008

—EEhE —EENF

RMB’ 000 RMB' 000

FRTARY FrARE

Salaries and other benefits He MEME 1,340 2,630
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes AR K& K5t 21t % - =
1,340 2,630

Their emoluments were all within the band of RMBNil to
RMB880,300 (equivalent to HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000).

During the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008, no
emolument was paid to the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office.

Mayer Holdings Limited Annual Report 2009
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 & ZE—

10. (LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE COMPANY
The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company
includes a profit of approximately RMB13,493,000 (2008: loss
of RMB8,259,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

11. DIVIDENDS

(@) Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable to
the year:

B % WS MR

TEAFTSAST-BLEE

10. XAFEE AEWN (FE)
its Al
KARBEBABEREEFNBRIER
RARA R B RE R E 2% M4
13,493,000t ARB (ZZ2ZNF : 5
188,259,000, AR ) ©

1M1.RE
REZRIEZENARAHERAZB
=
2009 2008
—gEAFE  —TTNF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FTRAR® FLTARE

Final dividend proposed after the
end of the reporting period of

(2008: RMBNil per ordinary share) ZHARE)

WEPAREBRERPRER
BREBRED AR
RMBNil per ordinary share (ZZZEN\F GRETER

(b) Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable
to the previous financial year, approved and paid during the

ERAFEE#E R Z £ — @K
FEEBHZENARBREAAZBRE

year:
2009 2008
—EEAE —ETN\F
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
FRARY FTTARK
Final dividend in respect of the previous R4 [ #t 4 MR 2
financial year, approved and paid E—ERBREE 2 RERE
during the year, of RMBNil per AERERRTES AR
ordinary share (2008: RMB2 cents —EENF  BREER
per ordinary share) 2O AR - 11,520

ETERERAAT 2009 F R
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 BZE—_ZEZNF+_A=+—HILLFE

12.5R (BE) BF
SREX(EE) BT

12. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic (loss)/earnings per share (a)

13.

Mayer Holdings Limited

(b)

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based
on the loss attributable to owners of the Company of
RMB510,000 (2008: profit of RMB7,222,000) and the
weighted average number of 576,000,000 ordinary shares
(2008: 576,000,000 ordinary shares) in issue during the year.

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share is equal to basic (loss)/
earnings per share as there were no dilutive ordinary shares
outstanding for both years presented.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are

organised by a mixture of both business lines (products and

services) and geography. On first-time adoption of HKFRS 8,

Operating Segments and in a manner consistent with the way

in which information is reported internally to the Group’s chief

operating decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation

and performance assessment, the Group has identified the

following five reportable segments. No operating segments have

been aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

Steel (Mainland China/Vietnam): given the importance of
the steel division to the Group, the Group’s steel business
is segregated further into two reportable segments on a
geographical basis, as the divisional managers for each of
these regions report directly to the senior executive team.
All two segments primarily derive their revenue from the
manufacture and trading of steel pipes, steel sheets and other
products made of steel. These products are manufactured
in the Group’s manufacturing facilities located primarily in
Mainland China and Vietnam.

Property investment: this segment leases office premises to
generate rental income and to gain from the appreciation in
the property’'s value in the long term. Currently the Group’s
investment property portfolio is located entirely in Taiwan.

Annual Report 2009
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 BZE—_ZEZTNF+_A=+—HILFE

13. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a)

Investments: this segment invests in unlisted equity securities
issued by private entities incorporated in Taiwan and Cayman
Islands to generate dividend income and/or to gain from the
appreciation in the investments’ values in the long term.

Aircraft: this segment leases aircrafts to generate rental
income and provides consultancy services to the lessee to
generate consultancy fee income. Currently, the operation of
aircraft business is located entirely in Taiwan.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

In accordance with HKFRS 8, segment information disclosed
has been prepared in a manner consistent with the
information used by the Group’s chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments. In this regard,
the Group’s chief operating decision maker monitors the
results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets and current assets
with the exception of corporate assets. Segment liabilities
include trade creditors, accruals and bank borrowings
managed directly by the segments with the exception of
corporate liabilities.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation
of assets attributable to those segments. However, other than
reporting inter-segment sales of steel products, assistance
provided by one segment to another, including sharing of
assets and technical know-how, is not measured.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “adjusted
EBIT” i.e. “adjusted earnings before interest and taxes”.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
adjusted EBIT, management is provided with segment
information concerning revenue (including inter-segment
sales), interest income and expense from cash balances and
borrowings managed directly by the segments, depreciation
and amortisation and additions to non-current segment
assets used by the segments in their operations.

Information regarding to the Group’s reportable segments
or provided to the Group’s chief operating decision maker
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the years is set out below.
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5 For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZEZE—_ZEZNF+_A=+—HILLFE
13. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 13. 2 HHE (&)
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) (a) PHEE -EERERS(E)

Year ended 31 December 2009
BE-ZENET-R=1-HLEE

Steel
# Property
China Vietham  investment  Investments Aircraft Total
H B WERE RE R @zt
RMB' 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
FRARE FrARE TFriAR® TFRAR® TrAR% FTRARY

Revenue from external customers  RESNFEP 2 Mz 402,760 15,632 8330 - 8,863 435,585
Inter-segment sales HHEEE - - - - - -
Reportable seqment revenue A& 2 A EME 402,760 15,632 8,330 - 8,863 435,585
Reportable seqment profitfloss) ~ AFHE 2 HHEF/(BR) 10,267 1,064 7,297 (2.270) 2,890 19,48
Interest income YN 420 146 1 = 5 577
Interest expenses MERx 1,846 81 2,779 = = 4,706
Depreciation and amortisation 7% J 2 9,963 865 - - 3,169 13,997
Imparment losson tradeand B ZEMEH R E BN 1,116 - - - - 1,116
other receivables REZRERE

Impairment loss on ARHESRHEE  RERE - - - 2,288 - 2,288

available-for-sale financial assets

Write down of inventories WRGE = a1 = S 5 a1

Reversal of write down of BEMRGE 28977 1,344 - - - 30,321
inventories

Reportable segment assets BYHELAHEE 384,701 36,688 223,084 19,136 24,631 688,240

Additions to non-current segment  FRFERE D HEE
assets during the year LB 1,527 5,368 - - = 6,895

Reportable seqment liabiites ~ A¥BEZHHEE 169,437 9,554 138,604 = 3 318,338

Mayer Holdings Limited Annual Report 2009
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 BZE—_ZEZNF+_A=+—HLFE

13. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

13. PR E (48)
(a)
Year ended 31 December 2008

BE-RTNEH-AZ+-ALER

DHEE BEEREE (H)

Steel
i Property
China Vietham  investment  Investments Aircraft Total
il ME MERE RE R &;
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
TrAR%E  TnARE TnAR®E TFrARE TrARE TraARE
Revenue from external customers  RESREE 2 Wia 629,903 2317 3977 S 9,344 665,541
Inter-segment sales PHRHE 287 - - - = 287
Reportable segmentrevenue AT HE 2 5 BME 630,190 2317 3977 - 9,344 665,828
Reportable segment profit/loss) A&z A HaEH,/(BE) 32,39 2,740 38,498 (16,122) 6,43 63,749
Interest income TN 3,710 407 4 35 1 4,157
Interest expenses MER% 14432 = 3,931 = = 18,363
Depreciation and amortisation 7% [t & 10,067 561 S S 2,276 12,904
Impairment loss on IENELREEL = = = 13,956 = 13,956
available-for-sale financial HEER
assets
Write down of inventories HREE 33,836 985 S S S 34,821
Net realised loss on disposal LERGES L = = S 2,256 S 2,256
of trading securities EERERTE
Valuation gain on investment AW E 2 BENE = S 36,655 S 5 36,655
property
Net loss on derivative financial T4 4RI A BEFE 386 = S S 5 386
instrument
Reportable seqment assets ETHE,AHEE 365,124 22,289 220,052 21,391 25,053 653,909
Additions to non-current segment  FRZEREI D HEE ZRE
assets during the year 3,844 9,114 194,604 - - 207,562
Reportable seqment liabiites ~~ A¥HEZHHEE 141,344 363 129,118 = e 270,825
EDERAERAAF 2009 F R
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HE—ZTZTAF+_-_A=+—HILtFE

13. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 13. 2 HHE (&)
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit (b) BEFHEZBRE -BR B
or loss, assets and liabilities EREEZHIR
2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FTrRARY Frx AR
Revenue I 25
Total reportable segment revenues BT WME 2D EBRELRTE 435,585 665,828
Elimination of inter-segment revenue 7§45 326 W &= S (287)
Unallocated head office and corporate K7 it 2 482 7] R (b ZUr 25
revenue - 1,652
Consolidated turnover A EER 435,585 667,193
Profit or loss B
Total reportable segment profit BT E 2 5 Eb s F AR 19,248 63,749
Reportable segment profit REREEIARTP 2
derived from Group's external ATWMEDIEF
customers 19,248 63,749
Interest income 2 BA 13 356
Depreciation e (83) )
Finance costs B AR (4,913) (19,388)
Unallocated head office and AoB R REERT
corporate expenses (10,921) (18,408)
Consolidated profit before FEaBRTARF
taxation 3,344 26,307
Assets BE
Total reportable segment assets BYMEZDBEERT 688,240 653,909
Unallocated head office and AOBBRBIRDEEE
corporate assets 9,487 10,034
Consolidated total assets LEBREE 697,727 663,943
Liabilities =L
Total reportable segment liabilities ATHRECHBABERTE 318,338 270,825
Unallocated head office and ROoMBRRARIREEEE
corporate liabilities 21,177 34,497
e : — N .
Consolidated total liabilities AEmaE 339,515 305,322
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13. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

() Geographic Information

The following is an analysis of geographical location of (i) the
Group's revenue from external customers and (i) the Group’s
non-current assets. The geographical location of customers is
refers to the location at which the services were provided or
the goods delivered. The Group’s non-current assets include
fixed assets and prepaid lease payments. The geographical
location of fixed assets and prepaid lease payments is based
on the physical location of the asset under consideration.

13. 7 EpRE (&)
() HEEHR

UTROAEEXRBIREFZ
Was RS BERBEE 21
B - BEPMIEM B HERHR
BEARXNERMAELE - NAA]
ZIRBEEREETEENA
NHERE BEEERBNH
EREZHBEMEER S REE
ZERNE -

Revenues from Non-current
external customers assets

REMREFz KR IRBEE
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EBANF ZEZETNF ZEBEEAF CZTIN\F
RMB’000 RMB" 000 RMB' 000 RMB"000
TRAR® TRAR® TrARY® TrAREH
Hong Kong B - - 1,009 2
Mainland China B A 400,254 629,904 76,856 86,215
Taiwan aiE 18,870 13,320 235,082 232,960
Vietnam e 14,566 22,317 21,600 18,365
Other-countries Hth B 1,895 = = =
435,585 665,541 334,547 337,542

(d) Information about major customers

For the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008, no single
customer contributing 10% or more of the total sales of the
Group.

d) EEEFzEHR
BE_ZZNEFR_ZFTZENF
+—A=+—BLFE gEE
—RFEBAEEAHEEEI0%
A E o
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—= =

NETZA=+—BIFE

,A_| ~.
14. FIXED ASSETS 14.BEEE
(a) The Group (a) X&EH
Furniture,
Building and fixtures
fatory Construction ~ Leasehold  andoffice  Plantand Motor Investment ~ Total fixed
premises in progress improvements  equipment  machinery vehicles Aircrafts ~ Sub-total property assets
B %8
BFREE  AEIR RENERE RULAZRE HERRE HE it Mt RENE BREEEH
RMB" 000 RMB" 000 RMB"000 RMB'000 RMB" 000 RMB" 000 RMB'000 RIB000 RMB" 000 RMB"000
TTARE  TnARE  THARE  TRARE  TRARE  TRARE  TnARE  TnARE  TRARE  TrARE
Cost or valuation RAGME
At 1 January 2008 n=ZEN\5-7-1 42367 11,073 3,760 6,443 98,335 1624 24838 188,440 - 188,440
Additions HE = 10,224 S 201 1313 1220 S 12,958 194,604 207,562
Transfers EE - (5,261) - 1147 4114 - - - - -
Disposals e S S S (m (3,886) (641) S (4,60) - (4,604
Fair value adjustments ATHEAE - - - - - - - - 36,65 36,655
Exchange adjustments EiAE S (1,44) 9 (164) (468) ) (1,608 (3.515) (15,670) (19,185)
At 31 December 2008 RZEENETZA=t-0 42367 14792 3751 7550 99,408 2,181 23230 193279 215,589 408,368
Representing f&
Cost A 42367 14792 3751 7550 99,408 2,181 B30 193,279 - 193,279
Valuation - 2008 EE-Z33N% - - - - - - - - SS9 215589
42367 14792 3751 7,550 99,408 2,181 23230 193,279 215,589 408,368
At 1 January 2009 RZFENE-R-A 42,367 14,792 3751 1,550 99,408 2,181 3230 193219 215,589 408,368
Additions hE - 6,446 - 175 4 1,090 - 7,985 - 7,985
Tiansfers (notef) () 1018 (12.983) - 536 9358 - - (2031 - (2031)
Disposals e - - - (270) (4,059) - - (4329) - (4329)
Fair value adjustments ATERE - - - - - - - - - -
Bxchange adjustments ERaE - (671) - (156) (#39) ® 16 (1,258) 5278 4,020
At31December 2009 RCERAFTIAST-B 0 B3 762 3751 783 104,542 3263 23,46 19646 20867 414513
Representing %
Cost 7 43,385 7624 3751 7835 104,542 3263 23,246 193,646 - 193,646
Veluaton - 2009 FE-2F20F - - - - - - - - mEr 20867
43385 1,624 3751 1835 104,542 3,263 2346 193,646 220,867 414513
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14. FIXED ASSETS (Continued) 14.BEEE (&)
(a) The Group (Continued) (a) &EHE(HE)
Furniture,
Building and fixtures
fatory Construction  Leasehold  andoffice  Plantand Motor Investment  Total fixed
premises inprogress improvements  equipment  machinery vehicles Aircrafts ~ Sub-total property assets
B %8

BTRAE  RRIR HENERE RNAERE HERER i it} Mt RENE BREELH
RVB'OOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RVB'OOD  RMBOOD  RMBODD  RVB'OOD  RMBOOD  RWBOO  RVB'OD
TEARE  TRARE  TRARE TRARE  TRARE  TRARE  TRARE  TaARE  TRARE  TRARE

Accumulated depreciation  23H47%

At 1 January 2008 n=TE)\5-5-1 16,086 - 1429 3035 46,023 882 3875 71330 - 7,330
Charge for th year KERTR 1905 - 360 781 7078 m 21 12,684 = 12,684
Witten back on disposals ~~ HEEER = = = (70) (3.486) (577) = [133) 5 (4133
Exchange adjustments EifE - - 9 ) (36) 0 (29) (361) = (361)
At31December 2008and  RZFTNETZA=+-BR

at 1 January 2009 R-EEn%-5-A 17,991 - 1,780 3730 495719 580 5,860 79520 - 79520
Charge for the yer RERHR 193 - % 758 7079 516 369 138 - s
Wittenback on disposals ~ HEHER - - - (236) (3,169) - - (3405) - (3405)
Exchange adjustments Ef A% - - - (17) (40) (1) 2 (56) - (56)
At 31 December 2009 RZTEAE+A=1-A 19,923 - 2,140 4235 53449 1,09 9,031 89873 - 89,873

Carrying amount KEE

At 31 December 2009 R-EENET-A=+-H 23482 7,624 1611 3,600 51,093 2,168 14215 103,773 220,367 324,640
At 31 December 2008 RZEENETZA=t-F U3 14792 1971 380 49829 1,601 17370 113,759 215,589 329,348
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< For the year ended 31 December 2009 BZE—_ZEZNF+_A=+—HILLFE
14. FIXED ASSETS (Continued) 14. B EEE (&)
(b) The Company (b) &AF
Furniture
Leasehold and Motor Total
improvements fixtures vehicles  fixed assets
HEMEEE  BRREE AE EREEA
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
FLARE FTARE TrARE TARE
Cost %N
At 1 January 2008 RZZZN\E—A—H 158 112 - 270
Exchange adjustments B 5 50 % ©)] (7) = (16)
At 31 December 2008 R_ZENF+_A=1—H
and at 1 January 2009 kRZEENE—A—H 149 105 = 254
Additions RNE S = 1,090 1,090
Exchange adjustments T - - - -
At 31 December 2009 R_ZENF+_A=1—H 149 105 1,090 1,344
Accumulated depreciation ~ EiHiTE
At 1 January 2008 RZZEEN\E—A—H 158 108 = 266
Charge for the year REEHR - 2 - 2
Exchange adjustments B 5 30 % ©)] (7) = (16)
At 31 December 2008 R_ZENF+_A=1—H
and at 1 January 2009 kRZEENE—A—H 149 103 = 252
Charge for the year AEEHK - 2 81 83
Exchange adjustments X R - - - -
At 31 December 2009 R_ZENF+_A=1—H 149 105 81 335
Carrying amount IREE
At 31 December 2009 RZZEENET_A=+—H - - 1,009 1,009
At 31 December 2008 RZZENF+_A=+—H - 2 - 2
.,
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14.BEEE (&)

(0 AEBRAFEFIRZREYE
ER-ETAE+-A=+—H
BRARTEELEER  BEAH
MEDRE T EYE 2T
BRSRHANEREE A
WASEE - BRI Em B AR
772 SR B E B E B TS
17 HARERATEHERHBLH
AEYEE ABABEZELER
18 R A E Y P R RE A
Bl 2 M Y2 2 3T BB EAE R o

14. FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

(c) The investment property of the Group carried at fair value was
revalued as at 31 December 2009 on an open market value
basis calculated by reference to recent market transactions in
comparable properties and to net rental income allowing for
reversionary income potential. The valuations were carried
out by an independent firm of surveyors,’Z 35 T Eh & 4 B AD
E%5FT, being a member of the Republic of China Association
of Real Estate Appraisers who have appropriate qualifications
and recent experience in the valuation of similar properties in
the relevant location and category of property being valued.

(d) The analysis of carrying amount of properties is as (d) ZEVEZREBEINOT :
follows:
The Group
rEH
2009 2008
—EZTAF ZTENF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FRARY TRARE
In PRC: R E
— medium-term leases —FRERFA 4 23,462 24,376
In Taiwan: ReE:
— freehold — K AFEE 220,867 215,589
244,329 239,965
Representing: (A
Building and factory premises BRATIWRZEFREE
carried at cost 23,462 24,376
Investment property carried BRATFEINRZIREDE
at fair value 220,867 215,589
244,329 239,965
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14. FIXED ASSETS (Continued) 14. B €& E (&)

(e) Fixed assets leased out under operating leases (e) BELLEHYIHEACEETEE
The Group leases out investment properties and aircrafts AEBRBLEHEAHLHIREY
under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial XA FMBEE s FHER
period of one to five years, with an option to renew the lease EMF R —ZRE - WATKHA
after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated. None NEmMEER  HRASHERS
of the leases includes contingent rentals. FIBIER - BERESTBIENK

fHE -
All of the Group’s property interests held under operating FrAERIELERLEHE A BRIA
leases to earn rentals are measured using the fair value model BZREEYERER - TIUARYT
and are classified and accounted for as investment property. BERAFE XD EAREDE
RIRIE AR o
As at 31 December 2009, the Group’s total future minimum RZZEZNF+ZA=+—H"
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases in BB TAITREE G E B MmERE
respect of aircrafts and investment property are as follows: R RIEEME 2 REERR
KEHSLEOT :
The Group
rEHE
2009 2008
22155 —EENF
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
FRARY FTTARE
Within 1 year —F R 14,941 15,962
After 1 year but within 5 years —FERERFNA 14,237 30,705
29,178 46,667
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14. FIXED ASSETS (Continued) 14.BEEE (&)

(f) Prepaid lease payments () EFAEERE
The Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EERE —ZEENF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FRARY FLTARE
The Group's prepaid lease payments REBE 2 BNEERIEA
comprise: BIE
Medium term lease: R HEFR 4 -
Land in the PRC PR Bz T3 7,972 8,194
Land in Vietnam LRI A i 1,935 =
9,907 8,194
Cost 59
At 1 January n—A—H 11,098 11,098
Transfer (note(a)) 2 (B ek(a)) 2,031 45
Exchange adjustments R (53) 7
At 31 December W+ZA=+—H 13,076 11,098
Accumulated amortisation BEtEe
At 1 January n—H—H 2,904 2,682
Charge for the year NEZ R 266 222
Exchange adjustment M H (1) -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 3,169 2,904
Carrying amount R EE
At 31 December W+-ZA=+—H 9,907 8,194
Analysed for reporting purpose as: 2 M 247 :
Current assets MENEE 266 222
Non-current assets EmENEE 9,641 7,972
9,907 8,194

The amortisation charge for the year is included in

“administrative expenses” in the consolidated income

statement.

REE ZBHX B O ARE RER

2T A -

XTERERAA
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14.ECEE (&)
(99 A=FEThE+=-A=+—A
KT AEEETEECHAEE
EEZRATRETMERTETER

14. FIXED ASSETS (Continued)
(g) As at 31 December 2009, the following fixed assets of the
Group were pledged to certain banks for banking facilities
granted to the Group as follows (note 29):

17 (PHEE29)
The Group
TEE
2009 2008
—EEAE ZEENF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FRAR® FTARKE
Building and factory premises BFEKE - 24,376
Construction in progress ERETRE - 7,656
Plant and machinery H2E R - 34,816
Investment property (note) "EYZE (M) 157,745 153,976
Prepaid lease payments A E 8 - 8,194
157,745 229,018
Note: The pledged amount of the investment property is limited to MieE s IREWMEZEIRESTIAL 157,745,000

Jo AR (#8E 5739,200,0007T 51 &
) (ZZFZN\F : 49153,976,0007T A

approximately RMB157,745,000 (equivalent to NTD739,200,000)
(2008: approximately RMB153,976,000 (equivalent to

NTD739,200,000)). R (38 Z M % & %739,200,0007T)
BBR) °
15. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 15. RMt B~ 8] 2 fE &
The Company

b /N
2009 2008
—EEhE —EENF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FTRARY FrARE
Unlisted shares, at cost JEEMRRG - A 215,569 215,569
Less: Impairment loss (note (c)) R OREEE (FEE) (16,660) (14,363)
198,909 201,206
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note (a)) U B BB A Rl TE (BT 55(a)) 5,355 9,974
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (note (b)) 35 : FIEEHE (KT (b)) = (2,833)
5,355 7,141
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15. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 15. Rt B AR 2 fE (&)

Notes: e -
(@)  Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and repayable (a) MEWHNBARRBAEEER 28 KRA
on demand. REKFFEE -
(b)  Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts (b) RIREHEE
The Company
b N
2009 2008
—EEAE —ETNEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
FRARY FrAREE
At 1 January R—A—H 2,833 2,384
Impairment losses recognised (note (c)) R REEE (i) - 597
Written off bk (2,833) 2
Exchange adjustments B 3 % = (148)
At 31 December Wt+=—A=+—H - 2,833
() The directors consider that in light of recurring operating loss of certain (0 ZEFERA ENETHBAGFENRS
subsidiaries, the recoverable amount of these subsidiaries has been LEEE ZZWBARZAIKOS
reduced to the estimated net realisable value of their identifiable net HEAREZEHAH#HFEE ZHTA
assets. Accordingly, impairment loss of approximately RMB2,297,000 FIREME - FAitt - EDBIBARF K
(2008: RMB14,363,000) and RMBNil (2008: RMB597,000) in respect of BATIZIEERERE AT RIBE
the Company’s investments in subsidiaries and the amounts due from R492,297,000 AREE (ZZET N\ F:
subsidiaries are recognised respectively. 14,363,000t AR¥E) RETTARYE (=
T\ : 597,000 A REE) Z R EE
B
(d)  The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which dy TXEIHEREBE %% EEXA
principally affect the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The class of BEXNETESZEWNB RTINS - B
shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. SEHBEN BEZROENRER
A& o
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15. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 15. RItB AR 2 = (&)

Place of
establishment/

Particulars of

Proportion of ownership interest

BRELA

Group's  Heldby  Held by

incorporation issued and effective the a
Name of company and operation paid-up capital interest  Company subsidiary Principal activities
ARER B/ SR AL ERTRAR X&EBz BAAFE B-BHE
S L BRAFE ERER #F  LABF IEER
Bamian Investments Pte. Singapore/ 16,829,670 100% 100% - Investment holding
Limited { Bamian") Hong Kong ordinary shares RERR

BIREBERAR(TEM]) Mg /B of SGD1 each

16,829,670 &K EE

g T2 SRR
Guangzhou Mayer * PRC Registered capital 81.4% - 81.4% Manufacture and trading of
BN F RMB200,000,000 steel pipes, steel sheets and
AR other products made of steel
200,000,0007c A R HWEREENE @A K
HiniEER
Vietnam Mayer (note) Vietnam 4,000,000 40.7% - 50% Manufacture and trading of
MEED (M) il ordinary shares steel pipes, steel sheets and
of USD1 each other products made of steel
4,000,000 SR EE HWERBERE WA R
(EPa- 13 HinRiEER

ROC Advance Limited (“ROC") British Virgin Islands/ 1,454,000 100% 100% - Leasing of aircrafts and provision

IBEERAR (]

The Republic of China

ordinary shares

of consultancy service

RBRIEE/ of USD1 each RIS R R LR R R

hERE 1,454,000 5 B &
(EFPa- 13

Sunbeam Group Limited British Virgin Islands/ 7,687,000 100% 100% - Investment holding

("Sunbeam”) Hong Kong ordinary shares RERR

FAEEBERAR (5K REELHS/ of USD1 each
6 7,687,000 G EE
(EFPa- 13

EEEERNHERAR The Republic of China 82,891,718 100% = 100%  Property investment

RERE

Mayer Holdings Limited Annual Report 2009
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15. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

15. R B AR 2 Em (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

EEELSA
Place of
establishment/ Particulars of Group's  Heldby  Held by
incorporation issued and effective the a
Name of company and operation paid-up capital interest  Company subsidiary Principal activities
ARER B/ SR AL ERTRAR X&EBz BAAFE B-BHE
REEHY R AR ERER #F  LABF IEER
Top Force International Limited British Virgin Islands/ 3,067,000 100% 100% - Investment holding
BHEBBRAR Hong Kong ordinary shares RERR
RBRIEE/ of USD1 each
6 3,067,000 Gk EE
(EPa-§ 13
Advance Century Development British Virgin Islands/ 2,140,000 100% 100% - Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong ordinary shares RERR
BEEERERAF RRELHE/ of USD1 each
6 2,140,000 F kA E
(EFPa-§ 13
& Registered under the laws of the PRC as sino-foreign equity joint- * REFRBEERFMZHPINEBEED

venture enterprise.

Note:

The Group holds 50% equity interests of Vietnam Mayer and

nominated 3 out of 5 directors in the board of directors of Vietnam
Mayer, which has the power to control the strategic financial and
operating policies of Vietnam Mayer. As a result, Vietnam Mayer is

accounted for as a subsidiary of the Company.

16. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

£
st . AERERHEMEET Z50%MAER
YEREMBEXGCEEEPAMLES
ZEHPR=f HAREGMEXEZ
RGN A B - U - #iE
EERARAMBARZTAAR -

16. IHESHEE

The Group
REH

2009 2008

—EENE —EENF

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

TrRARY FrARE

Unlisted securities, at cost: JELTES - WA

— Club debentures (note (c)) — 2 ES (Mi5ECQ) 1,094 1,294

— Equity securities —RARFS 35,098 34,874
36,192 36,168
Less: Impairment loss (note (a)) & ORE (B EE@)) (17,092) (14,797)
19,100 21,371

|
EDERAERALF 2009 FRH
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16. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 16. It HELMEE (&)
(Continued)
The above unlisted investments represent investments in unlisted ERFELTRERRTEKERESRE
equity securities and debentures issued by private entities BERFAEHESTMAIZLAERE
incorporated in PRC, Taiwan and Cayman Islands. They are FresrT 2 3E EMRA B S RIEEE -
measured at cost less impairment at the end of each reporting BRKENR RS HARER AR ERE
period because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so FE - REAASEBATVTEZMEHE
significant that the directors of the Company are of the opinion BAEE MARTEETRAEER
that their fair values cannot be measured reliably. EFEBMAREZAYE -
Notes: MI5E
(@) Movements in the impairment loss (@) WEEEZ
The Group
A%E
2009 2008
—BehE —TT)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
FRARY FrRAREE
At 1 January wn—A—H 14,797 1,294
Impairment loss recognised (note (b)) BRERREEE (FiEb)) 2,288 13,956
Written off ELiEic! (200) =
Exchange adjustments HE 5, 8 207 (453)
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 17,092 14,797
(b)  The directors consider that in light of recurring operating loss of investee by BEERA ERNEREQRBFEHNS
companies, the recoverable amount of these investee companies has g ZEEEN 7ZTH&E$%EE§H
been reduced to the estimated net realisable value of their identifiable BKEHAEBEEE 2 (L] 215 %
net assets. Accordingly, impairment loss of RMB2,288,000 (2008: B Bt - ERREKATER2,288,000
RMB13,956,000) in respect of the costs of investments is recognised. TTARE (ZZZ)\F 1 13,956,0007T A

R#%) 2 BEESE -

() The cost of club debentures was fully impaired in prior years as the (0 =EAE ﬁZWZ—"Eb‘AL/& FEE D2 ER
management of the Company considered that the recovery of this B EEARNAREREERAKE LS
amount was remote. B oMEEN -
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17. INVENTORIES 17. 78
The Group
rEH
2009 2008
—EBNhEF —EENEF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FRARY FTTARE
Raw materials R % 38,222 65,573
Finished goods SIRK o 24,648 24,402
62,870 89,975

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense

is as follows:

ERRASAXZFESEINMOT

The Group
TEE
2009 2008
—EBhEF ZEENF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FrRARY FTARKE
Carrying amount of inventories sold BEEFEZIREE 415,316 568,517
Write down of inventories (note(a)) WO FEE (Fizt@)) 421 34,821
Reversal of write down of
inventories (note(b)) WoR T &= (K 5Eb)) (30,321) -
385,416 603,338
Notes: B2
(@) The write down of inventories made during the year arose (@) EAMAEE  REEARERS

due to a decrease in the estimated net realisable value of the
raw materials and finished goods based on the latest market
transactions for similar products.

The reversal of write down of inventories arose as a result of
the subsequent usage of raw materials, subsequent sale of
finished goods and an increase in the estimated net realisable
value of the raw materials and finished goods for which a
write down was made in prior year.

EmZRHMER5 R R
LR 2 fh T A IFE KR

oo

e

OB F BB B T A BE R fE A R
o BREERKmIEEFE
B VEMOR < R4 # R BB m (i ET
A &3 FHE I DA R
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18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 1. ESEWNIER R HM B X

i
.’ s

112

b1 |
The Group The Company
REE ¥ /N
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EZAE —TTEN\F ZEBENE —TITN\F
RMB’' 000 RMB’ 000 RMB' 000 RMB’000
FTRAR®E TIAR®E TrAR® TFTrARE
Trade debtors and bills 2 5 IR 51 R B IR

receivables (note (a)) =i (@) 166,515 118,448 = =

Less: allowance for doubtful B RIRE A (I 3E(D))
debts (note (b)) (2,460) (1,525) - -
164,055 116,923 - -
Other receivables Hib e dRia 785 957 11 47

Less: allowance for doubtful W RIREE (I 3E(D))
debts (note (b)) - (62) - -
785 895 1 47

Amount due from a director JiE W 2 = 20E (B EE(d))
(note (d)) - 17 - 17

Amount due from a related e A B 1 B 3R

company (note (e)) (M 7ECe)) 8,557 7,025 = =
Loans and receivables EX R e E 173,397 124,860 11 64
Prepayments and deposits BNRBERES 1,958 1,339 176 176
175,355 126,199 187 240

All of the trade and other receivables (including amounts due from
a director and a related company) are expected to be recovered

within one year.
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18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Age analysis

Trade debtors and bills receivables are net of allowance for
doubtful debts of RMB2,460,000 (2008: RMB1,525,000)
with the following age analysis as of the end of the reporting

18. B 5 FE W bR X K H ft FE LK
75 (%)
(a) 1Rk HT

PIREER - B S EUIRZR R EWEE
B R R 8 452,460,000 A R#E (=
TE )\ : 1,525,0007C A REE) 2 iREE

period: AT -
The Group
£33
2009 2008
—EENE —ETNF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FRARY FrARY
Current RIHA 164,055 115,121
1 to 3 months overdue BHAVE A =318 A - 1,802
164,055 116,923

Trade debtors are due within 30-180 days from the date of
billing. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out
in note 26(a).

Impairment of trade debtors and bills receivables and
other receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors and bills
receivables and other receivables are recorded using an
allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery
of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is
written off against the debtors directly (see note 2(h)(i)).

(b)

B 5 EWIR KA B E B #112#930
Z180RAFEAIZ T - BRAARSE
EEBER 2 E— P IRE N
26(a) °

BEZRBIRRREREEARE
i FE WK TR 2 BB

B 5 IR S B R IR DA R B
i FE MR IR 2 TR 1B B 18 DA BB A R
FLE%  BRIEAKEEERKEA
BRIREZ e T B R
BEE1E S B & AR UIR K s
(RBFEE2(h))) °
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18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 18. & 5 F&E U R 3% & H b FE UL 3k

15 (&)

(b) Impairment of trade debtors and bills receivables and b) ESEWRRRREREEURE
other receivables (Continued) fib FE WX FR B 2 BB (1)
Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts: RIRE R

The Group
TEE

2009 2008

—EENEF —ZEZNF

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

FrRARYE FTARE

At 1 January R—H—H 1,587 920

Impairment loss recognised ERRREEE 1,116 667

Reversal of impairment loss REE BT (55) =

Uncollectible amounts written off [=EiE RN R E e (188) =

At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 2,460 1,587
As at 31 December 2009, trade debtors and bills receivables R-BZENF+_A=+—8"
and other receivables of the Group amounting to KREB B SRR R EKE
RMB2,460,000 (2008: RMB1,587,000) were individually 15 A K2 H b U 5778 2,460,000
determined to be impaired. These individually impaired ARB(ZZFZ/)\F 1,587,000
receivables were due from debtors with financial difficulties TARKE) 2 AR T A& LIR
and management assessed that only a portion of the B o It 5 E B 3R R B < FE UK
receivables is expected to be recovered. Consequently, RESRBAVTHEREE 2 ZF
specific allowances for doubtful debts of RMB1,116,000 BEERE TG BHEATKRE
(2008: RMB667,000) are recognised. The Group does not B0 U IE - AL B R
hold any collateral over these balances. RIEEEH1,116,000t ARKE (=

TZE )\ : 667,000t ARE) o
AEBYBFERBAFEHZ
EREEER UL
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18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(b)

Impairment of trade debtors and bills receivables and
other receivables (Continued)

The factors which the Group considered in determining
whether these debtors were individually impaired include, for
example, the following:

¢ significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

e  receivables that have been outstanding for a certain
period;

e the Group granting to the debtor, for economic or
legal reasons relating to the debtor’s financial difficulty,
a concession that the Group would not otherwise
consider;

e it is becoming probable that the debtor will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

e  oObservable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from the
debtor since their initial recognition, although the
decrease cannot yet be identified including:

- adverse changes in the payment status of debtors

in the Group;

- economic conditions that correlate with defaults
on the trade receivables in the Group.

18. B 5 P& Wik 3R % H i FE LUK
H (&)
(b) 5.5 MR 0 OF 3 I 8t 48 L IR L
o 0 2 L ()
FEBRETZEE S HKIRR
RECEBIRERFTE R EE
B -

o BEHRABERMEEE

o EYWFIEER-—BREEARXR

3
183

il

s AEEREEHAZHMBR
HARMZRKBEIRRER -
RMTEBA-BAREER
ERTEERZES

o B ARRERESETEA

MHIBER
o  ABEZENBREWRIR

BB RERARRE - HiAat
ARREREHRAFEZ
A BE ERBEH R A
B B

— AEBEFEBEAZFEGK
L3R R

- BEXAKEBSEK
RN E B2 BN
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18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 18. &
15
(c) Trade debtors and bills receivables that are not (c)
impaired
The age analysis of trade debtors and bills receivables that are
neither individually nor collectively considered to be impaired
are as follows:

5 P Wik K % HL it FE UL R
(%)

3 486121 2 59 R Rk X
=i
WAL MR (TR ERIR
[F) 2 B 5 REHR 3R R M 18 2
IRE AT :

The Group
rEE

2009 2008

—®BAE —TT S

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

FRARYE FTARE

Neither past due nor impaired B8 AR N R R B 164,055 115,121
Past due but not impaired wHAB N R A

Less than 1 month past due BHAL R —E A - 1,800

1 to 3 months past due wmH—Z=={AH - 2

- 1,802

164,055 116,923

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.
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18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(d) The amount is unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand.

(e) The amount due from a related company amounted to
RMB8,557,000 (2008: RMB7,025,000), in which Mr. Huang
Chun-fa has beneficial interest, is unsecured, interest free
and repayable within the next twelve months from the end
of the reporting period. The maximum amount outstanding
during the year amounted to RMB10,603,000 (2008:
RMB7,025,000).

No provision for the amount due has been made in the
financial statements.

19. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

The amounts are pledged to secure the Group’s banking facilities
(see note 29). The pledged bank deposits carry fixed interest rate
at 0.10% (2008: 0.10% to 0.80%) per annum for the year ended
31 December 2009.

18. B 5 P& Wik 5 % H b FE LUK
5 (&)
d) FRRAAEER  2ERAR

(e)

ERFEE -

ER—BERAEAR (FEHE X
FRUH AR ES ) B
£8,557,000 AR (ZZZN
17,025,000 A RE) - ThiE
BH B8 WEARBESHRK
BetzAkRKR+=—@ARNGEE-
REAKRBERELERS A
10,603,000t A REE (ZZEZEN
& 7,025,000 AREE) o

B TS8R 5 M3 R A R FE WK IR 1
B -

19. B HRWITER
EEMRITER D AERSE ZR1TE
BB (RWE29) - REE-_TZ
NF+ZA=1+—HILFE ' BEPR
TERIR0.10% (ZZEZN\F : 0.10%
£0.80%) 2 BEEFEFE ©
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20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20 BERBEEEEER
The Group The Company
KEH AR
2009 2008 2009 2008

—2EAE —FEN\F —EFEAE FINE
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’ 000
TRARE TRARE TRARE TRARK

Deposits with banks RITIFH 29,000 25,357 - 1,271
Cash at bank and on hand RITEFERE 69,736 53,036 4,002 3,725

Cash and cash equivalents in A MBRRR R

the consolidated statement RERERERZ
of financial position and RekHe%FEER
the consolidated statement
of cash flows 98,736 78,393 4,002 4,996
Deposits with banks carry interest at market rates which range RBE-_ZZEAE+-_A=+—81t
from 0.81% to 1.71% (2008: 0.05% to 20%) per annum for the FERITHFERIL081%E1.71% (=
year ended 31 December 2009. TENF  0.05%F20%) 2 T HFIE
B
21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. E B EIIRF R H At S K
15
The Group The Company
rEEH KAFE]
2009 2008 2009 2008
“EZAE ZTTENF ZEEAE ZTITNF
RMB’'000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB' 000
TRAR® TIARE TrRAR® TFTrARE
Trade payables g P ENIRN 18,351 6,697 = =
Other payables H A e IR 21,395 23,456 2,080 5,073
Dividend payables FERTAR S 566 1,079 566 1,058
Amount due to a director (note)  FE{TE E 38 (Fisr) 1,119 162 1,119 =
Amount due to minority e %ﬁ(ﬂx%?ﬁ
_/shareholder (note) (B 3E) - 152 S =
Amount due to ultimate holding B &2 A A
company (note) A (f3T) 11,607 21,285 10,753 24,719
Financial liabilities measured at & 2 B 5K AR 2
amortised cost Gz =L 53,038 52,831 14,518 30,850
Derivative financial instrument ~ $T44£m T A - 386 = =
mt
53,038 53,217 14,518 30,850
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21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 21. B B B IR R H b B K
15 (%)
All of the trade and other payables (including amounts due to a8 5 BRI R E A B ZIE (2
related parties) are expected to be settled within one year or are FENEBEATHRIE) HIEAER—
repayable on demand. FREBHEREKERE -
The following is an age analysis of trade payables as at the end of B ZEMIERRmME AR IR DT
the reporting period: o
The Group
TEE
2009 2008
—EBNhEF —EENEF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FRARYE FrTARY
Current — 30 days BIEAZE30H 17,106 2,195
31 - 60 days 31£260H 872 1,539
61— 90 days 61290H - 862
91 - 180 days 912 180H 2 1,847
Over 180 days 80B A 371 254
18,351 6,697
Note: The amounts are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. MizE: BEAREAEER  2EREREXK
FREE -
22. BANK BORROWINGS 22. RITEE
The Group The Company
rEE NN
2009 2008 2009 2008

“ETAE -TI\F CBRRE —FTINF
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB'000
TRARY TRARE TIARE TIARK

Bank loans BITER 279,418 244,141 6,866 6,866
Secured (note (a)) BER (K@) 183,558 222,605 6,866 6,866
Unsecured (note (b)) IR (M5 b)) 95,860 21,536 = ~
279,418 244,141 6,866 6,866 B
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22. RITEE (&)
RZEEAE+=_A=+—1 17T
BEZERBRNOT :

22. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

At 31 December 2009, the bank borrowings were repayable as
follows:

120

The Group The Company
rEH AT

2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEAE ZEEN\E ZEBERE ZZTN\F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
TRAR®E TFTrARE TFTrAR® FTIARK
Within 1 year or on demand —FRRIEEK 155,646 139,458 6,866 6,866
After 1 year but within 2 years ~ —F & EMER 19,206 12,885 = =
After 2 years but within 5 years  MFERZERFR 16,645 41,294 - =
After 5 years hEE 87,921 50,504 = =
123,772 104,683 - =
279,418 244,141 6,866 6,866

All of the non-current interest-bearing borrowings are carried

P& R e AT BB IR A AR -

at amortised cost. None of the non-current interest-bearing B EIERES T BEEER —FA
borrowings is expected to be settled within one year. 4EE o

All of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment of
covenants relating to certain of the Group’s balance sheet ratios,
as are commonly found in lending arrangements with finance
institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenants, the drawn
down facilities would become payable on demand. The Group
regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants. Further
details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out
in note 26(b). As at 31 December 2009, none of the covenants
relating to drawn down facilities had been breached.
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22. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

At 31 December 2009, the banking facilities of the Group are
secured by bank deposits amounting to RMB5,404,000 (2008:
RMB5,578,000) (see note 19). Such banking facilities amounting
to RMB512,866,000 (2008: RMB788,794,000), of which
approximately RMB36,524,000 (equivalent to approximately
USD5,350,000) is subject to be secured by the Group’s property,
plant and equipment and prepaid lease payments at the bank’s
discretion in the future period. The facilities were utilised to
the extent of RMB262,886,000 at 31 December 2009 (2008:
RMB244,141,000). The pledged bank deposits will be released
upon the settlement of the relevant bank borrowings.

Note:
(@)  The secured bank borrowings comprise:

(i) at 31 December 2009, approximately RMB128,894,000 (equivalent
to approximately NTD604,000,000) from a bank is bearing interest
rate at 2.5% per annum and secured by an investment property
with carrying amount of approximately RMB220,867,000 and
repayable by installments up to 18 June 2024.

at 31 December 2008, approximately RMB118,166,000 (equivalent
to approximately NTD567,286,000) from a bank was bearing
interest ranging from 2.3% to 2.4% per annum and secured by
an investment property with carrying amount of approximately
RMB215,589,000, bank deposit with carrying amount of
approximately RMB1,458,000 (equivalent to approximately
NTD7,000,000) and guarantee given by the Company and a
director of the Company, Mr. Lai Yueh-hsing. The loan was fully
repaid during the year ended 31 December 2009.

22. RITEE (&)

RZZENF+_A=+—0H K&
B 48 1712 & JY A5,404,0007T A R #
—Z T )\ 4 :5,578,0000T A R#)
ZRITFERERER (RHEE19) -
RZEZBAFE+_A=+—8 " Z
171 B A #512,866,000T A R# (=
T T )\ 4F : 788,794,000 A R ) -
H 1 4936,524,0000T A R (& ®
#95,350,0003€ 7T ) 78 70 7K 2K B fA | 4R
TERBUAEEYE  BER&ER
BNAEREERER - ZEEER
—ETNE+ A=+ —RHEHH
262,886,000t ARM (ZZEZT )\ F :
244,141,000t A R %) - BHEIRIRTT
BRERGEEEBRTEBEEERE
Hl' o

G
() EEMBTEEEE

() RZZEZTHAF+ZA=+—8"
128,894,000t A R ¥ (FHE R
#7604,000,000C 1 & ) 2 &
Em—METRES RERNEX
25%TE - W —BIRAELD
220,867,000t A R 2 R E W)
¥ BEFEANR-_ZT_NF A
+NBRISHEAEE -

RZBEENF+=_A=+—8"
118,166,0007T A R ¥ (M E R4
567,286,000 &) 26 &M
—MERITRME  BREMEK23%E
24%F B WH—HIREED
215,589,000t A R 2 R E W
¥ . WRE{E 491,458,0007T A R #
(FE F 497,000,000 & #) 2
BITER  URARBRARRE
HREE S IR 2 SRR BT o
ZERCREBE-_ZTTAF+ =
A=+—BLEEFENES -
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22. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(a) (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

approximately RMB47,798,000 (equivalent to approximately
UsD7,000,000) (2008: approximately RMB97,573,000 (equivalent
to approximately USD14,276,000)) from banks are bearing interest
ranging from 1.67% to 2.5% per annum (2008: 2.3% to 6.0%)
and repayable within one year and secured by the following:

- Prepaid lease payments with aggregate carrying amount of
approximately RMBNIil (2008: approximately RMB8,194,000);

- Building and factory premises with aggregate carrying
amount of approximately RMBNil (2008: approximately
RMB24,376,000);

- Plant and machinery with aggregate carrying amount
of approximately RMBNil (2008: approximately
RMB34,816,000);

- Guarantee given by the Company.

at 31 December 2009, approximately RMB6,866,000 (equivalent to
approximately USD1,000,000) from a bank is bearing interest rate
at 1.96% per annum and secured by a bank deposit with aggregate
carrying amount of approximately RMB5,404,000 (equivalent to
approximately USD787,000) and guarantee given by the Company
and certain subsidiaries, and fully settled subsequent to the
reporting period.

at 31 December 2008, approximately RMB6,866,000 (equivalent
to approximately USD1,000,000) from a bank was bearing
interest rate at 4% per annum and secured by a bank deposit
with aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB4,120,000
(equivalent to approximately USD600,000) and guarantee given
by the Company and certain subsidiaries. The loan was fully repaid
during the year ended 31 December 2009.

(b)  The unsecured bank borrowings comprise:

(0]

Mayer Holdings Limited

approximately RMB90,444,000 (equivalent to approximately
USD13,246,000) (2008: approximately RMB21,536,000 (equivalent
to approximately USD3,151,000)) from banks are unsecured,
unguaranteed, bearing interest ranging from 0.28% to 1.35% per
annum (2008: 5.5% to 6.4%) and repayable within one year.

approximately RMB5,416,000 (equivalent to approximately
VND14,647,884,000) (2008: RMBNil) from a bank is unsecured,
unguaranteed, bearing interest ranging from 5.5% to 12% per
annum and repayable by 17 June 2010.

Annual Report 2009

22. R1TEE (&)

Mt : (&)

(iii)

#947,798,0007T A R # (B E
#97,000,000% 7T) (ZETNF :
#997,573,0007T A R # <$ =)
’714,276,000%71)) ZEEHR%
P IR 17 IR 4 - IR FI R 1.67%%
2.5% L;fz/\i 2.3%%6.0%)
FTE AR —FNERE WAMUT
HEEERA -

- BEEEHNTSTARE(CZ
TENF Z’781940007%/\
R¥) zBHRERE

- MBIEEEHNTSTARE(CZ
T )\ 4F : £924,376,0007C
AR ZEFRBE

- BEEEHNTSTARE(CZ
T T )\ 4F : 4934,816,0007T
ARM) Zihes MR

- AREREZER:

R-ZBEEANF+=_A=+—8"
6,866,000 AR M (HE R &
1,000,000 7T) Z f& B B — MR
1TIRME - HRFFIE1.96%5T 8+ W
£ IR T8 4218 495,404,,0007T A R #
(&R #)787,0005ETT) 2 R1T1F
HARAERRRETFHEARR
H2ERIEET  YERREBHE

BIE -

RZBEENF+=-_A=+—8"
6,866,000t A R (ABE R4
1,000,000%7T) 2 f& B B —ERTT
R BFEMERI% S - WHK
E4{E#14,120,0007T AR (1BE
7 #9600,000% 7T) Z $RITF R
RARBIRE IFMTE’A"HET#Z%F‘
RIEER - WEARZZTAF+=
A=+—HEZ-

(b) MEMRITERRE:

@

(ii)

#990,444, OOORAE’RM*E?E? RA
13,246,000% L) (ZZTZENF :
#921,536, OOOEAE%* *“Eé
3,151,000% 7)) 2 fE E R Z R
TR - BEEA - ﬁﬁ%ﬁ% CIRE
FE028%E1.35%+ B (ZZTF
NE :55%%64%H8)  UKRA
N—FREE-

3

Eﬂ

#95,416,000t A R (FBE R A
14,647,884,0007TmEE) (ZTF
NE BT ARKE) ZIEEHR—M
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23. INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF 23. REMBRRA R Z BB
FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Current taxation in the statement of financial position (a) BAREARR R 2 BIERFR B R -
represents:
The Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EENEF —EENF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FRARY FTARY
Provision for the year EKEERE
— Hong Kong Profits Tax —EENEN = 7
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax —F B EMERK - 6,989
— Other tax jurisdictions —HE BBt E 1,159 323
Provisional tax paid ST EHB
— Hong Kong Profits Tax —BANEM S F
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax —HR BTSN - (10,887)
— Other tax jurisdictions —H bRt & (1,167) (330
(8) (3,905)
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23. INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF B.EREMBRRARZAEHR
FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued) (&)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: by EMRELEMBEEREE:
The Group REE
The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in FRN - REGHBRARERZ
the consolidated statement of financial position and the B TE B EER D R EE
movements during the year are as follows: BRIAT
Revaluation

of investment

property

EfREYE

RMB" 000

FTARKE

Deferred tax arising from: BRUTRBEES ZEERIE

At 1 January 2008 RZZEZENF—H—H -

Charged to profit or loss (note 7(a)) FFAERE (7)) (8,434)

Exchange adjustments ME H S8 470

At 31 December 2008 R-_EENF+_A=+—H (7,964)

At 1 January 2009 RZZEZENF—H—H (7,964)

Credited to profit or loss (note 7(a)) RER KRB (M5E7@R)) 1,066

Exchange adjustments PE 38 (161)

At 31 December 2009 RZEZAMETZA=1T—H (7,059)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised (0 WREBRZELEHEEE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax RMEPR  NEBERDAB
losses of RMB52,824,000 (2008: RMB31,851,000) available THE51852,824,000t ARK (=&
for offset against future profits that may be carried forward T\ : 31,851,000t AR 7]
indefinitely, except of which RMB18,666,000 (2008: RMBNil) FA A 8 5K 2R 5 ) T A 4 PR HR 45
was tax loss in the PRC which is available for carry forward $T T’EH\ /118,666,000 A R #&
to set off future assessable incomes for a maximum period of —ETENF: fEAEﬁ‘?) p=3ei
five years, which will be expired in 2014 for the year ended 31 NI IEE 1R - A4 A IE AR R
December 2009. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in J?’E%E%ﬁ%l)\ﬂ%%ﬂi,ﬁﬁ M- &
respect of the tax losses due to the unpredictability of future EZZENF+ZRA=F+—HIE
profit streams. FEABR _Z—MNEE®- /B
PR TROBI R % M ZOR - B ikt
m WENRHIEEERRELERIEEAR

E o
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24. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted on
24 May 2004, for the primary purpose of providing incentives and
to recognise the contribution of the eligible participants to the
growth of the Group and will expire on 24 May 2014. Under the
share option scheme, the board of directors may grant options to
eligible full time employees, including any executive, non-executive
and independent non-executive directors, and consultants or
advisers of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

Up to 31 December 2009, no options have been granted since the
adoption of the share option scheme in 2004. The total number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted under the share
option scheme and any other option schemes is not permitted to
exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company from time
to time, without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
The number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
to any individual in any year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company, without prior approval from
the Company'’s shareholders.

Options may be exercised at any time from the date of grant to
the 10 years of the date of grant. No minimum period for which
an option must be held is required. The exercise price, which is
determined by the board of directors, is the highest of: (i) the
closing price per share on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing
price per share for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a share.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HE—ZZTHF+_-_A=+—HILtFE

25. CAPITAL AND RESERVES 2. U ESEEEW ARG H/ER
2R 5 (&)
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) EZROMWES
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances REBGERESBO ZFNR
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity FRERZHBRINGERRE
is set out in the consolidated statement of changes in RN ARFIEBIERIT DR
equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s individual FYIRFHREZEHEHTINT :

components of equity between the beginning and the end of
the year are set out below:

The Company AT
Proposed
Share Share Special  Exchange Accumulated final
capital premium reserve reserve losses dividend Total

B RHEE  BARE  EXBE  RHER BRANER it
RMBOOO  RMB'OOD  RMBO00  RMB000  RMB'OOD  RMBO0D  RMB'000
TIARE  THARE TRARE  TRARE TRARE  TRARR  TRARE

1 January 2008 RZZZNF
-A-A 59,460 82,345 125211 (23,008) (43,547) 11,520 211,981
Exchange differenceson B EHBREA
translation of financial ~ EFIEHEL

statements to LELES
presentation currency - - - (12.213) - - (12.213)
Loss for the year ERER - S S S (8,259) = (8,259)
Dividend paid (note 11(0)) 2T &
(HEE1(6)) - - - - - (11,520) (11,50)

At31December2008  RZZENE
+-R=1-H 59,460 82,345 125,211 (35,221) (51,806) = 179,989

1 January 2009 RZZENE
-A-A 59,460 82,345 125211 (35,221) (51,806) - 179,939
Exchange differences BERBRER
on translation of financial ~ 23| EHES

statements to LERER
presentation currency = = = 5 5 = =
Profit for the year ERET - - - - 13,493 - 13493

At31December2009  RZEEAE
w TZAZT-H 59460 8345 125211 (35.221)  (38313) - 193482
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2. REZEEWURGAER
ZXR5 (&)

25. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Share capital (b) B
(i)  Authorised and issued share capital ) ZEEREFTRA
2009 2008
—EEhEF —ETNF
Number Number
of shares RMB of shares RMB
gl 4= AR®E g B AR
000 000 000 000
¥ Fr ¥ T
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of BREE0.10%T
HK$0.10 each ZEER 2,000,000 195,662 2,000,000 195,662
Ordinary shares, issued ~ EZ{TRERZ
and fully paid: LA
At 1 January and KR—A—BK
at 31 December +=ZA=+—H 576,000 59,460 576,000 59,460

(ii)

The owners of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.
All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the
Company’ s residual assets.

Increase in authorised share capital

By an ordinary resolution passed at the special general
meeting held on 6 June 2008, the Company’s authorised
share capital was increased to HK$200,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB195,662,000) by the
creation of an additional 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each, ranking pari passu with the existing
ordinary shares of the Company in all respects.

(i1)

XTERERAA

BB E AR
BERZBE YERRAR
AIRERARE EREBERBNZE
E—EREE -ARFZ
RHREEMS IBEEBK

TR SR -

1 I E R A
BEZZTZENFASNANH
RITZBRERFINAE LB
BZEBRBR ARAZ
A TE B% AN #E %200,000,000
78 7T (A8 & FL #9195,662,000
TARKE) A BER
1,000,000,000/% & i% ™ &
0.108B Tz BBk - %ZEFE
BRESAEEKRQRRE
TRREHRSER -

2009 %
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2. REZEEVURMDAER
ZXR5 (&)
(0 REZMEREY

25. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

() Nature and purpose of reserves

128

(i) Share premium ) REEE
The application of the share premium account is IR 5 Bk 2 B A X S 8
governed by the Companies Acts of the Cayman Islands. EBRBVEMRE o
Under the Companies Acts of the Cayman Islands, the BRERSBEESRRE  AA
funds in the share premium account of the Company ARMEER A2 DK
are distributable to the shareholders of the Company FARERE - HERBEEZ
provided that immediately following the date on which KRB B1% - AN A EEEEHN
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company BENEEEKEE NG
will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due & -
in the ordinary course of business.

(i)  Special reserve (i) FEFIEE
The Group AN E

The amount represents the paid-in capital of the
Company of 1 share of HK$0.10 each and the special
reserve of RMB83,570,000 arising from exchange of 1
share of the Company of HK$0.10 for the entire share
capital of Bamian pursuant to the reorganisation scheme
dated 12 December 2005.

The Company

The special reserve represents the difference between
the nominal value of the shares of the Company
issued in exchange for the issued share capital of the
subsidiaries and the value of the underlying assets of the
subsidiaries pursuant to the group reorganisation on 12
December 2004.

Mayer Holdings Limited Annual Report 2009
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25. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

() Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Statutory surplus reserve

The Articles of Association of Guangzhou Mayer
requires the appropriation of 10% of its profit after
taxation, based on its statutory audited accounts, each
year to the statutory surplus reserve until the balance
reaches 50% of the registered capital. According to the
provision of the Articles of Association of Guangzhou
Mayer, in normal circumstances, the statutory surplus
reserve shall only be used for making up losses,
capitalisation into share capital and expansion of the
production and operation of Guangzhou Mayer. For
the capitalisation of statutory surplus reserve into share
capital, the remaining amount of such reserve shall not
be less than 25% of the registered share capital.

Statutory public welfare fund

Pursuant to the PRC Company Law, Guangzhou Mayer
shall make allocation from its profit after taxation at the
rate of 5% to 10% to the statutory public welfare fund,
based on its statutory audited accounts. The statutory
public welfare fund can only be utilised on capital items
for employees’ collective welfare. Individual employees
only have the right to use these facilities, the titles to
which will remain with the Company. The statutory
public welfare fund forms part of the shareholders’
equity but is non-distributable other than in liquidation.
With effect from 1 January 2006, the appropriation
is not a statutory requirement in accordance with the
PRC Company Law (2006 Amendment). Guangzhou
Mayer adopted the amended Company Law and no
appropriation was made.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 2(r).

2. IERZEEW IR AER
25 (&)
(0 BEHERENE)

(iir)

(iv)

/f/fﬁ Ef

BN E T 2 484 = 2 48 A
BT SFARBEEEL
FEZIRE - BBREBERT 2
10%BELEEATER  HEE
ZREEE R ETEMEERS0%
Al BIEEMNETHEE
BERRPAIZHATE  E—RE
M oEERESENAER

HEE BRARARERE
MNZETE 2 A E B EE o 0K
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25% °
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2. REZEEVURMDAER
ZXR5 (&)

25. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)
(d) Distributability of reserves

130

At 31 December 2009, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to owners of the Company was
RMB169,243,000 (2008: RMB155,750,000). After the end of
the reporting period, the directors proposed a final dividend
of RMBNil cent per share (2008: RMBNil cent per share)
amounting to RMBNil (2008: RMBNil). This dividend has not
been recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting

(d) &I

R_ZEZAE+-_A=+—8"
AEDEFARAREE A2 EE
48 %8 /3169,243,0007TC A R ¥ (=
T )\ 4 : 155,750,000T A R
B - RIREHIRE - EFEHR
BREBEERTIND ARE (ZF
TNF  BREH ARK) - B

period. ETTARE(ZZEZNF T
ARE) - RIREHFR @ HIERS
PTREREEE-
(e) Capital management (e) EXEE

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns to shareholders and benefits
to other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
stakeholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practices, the Group monitors its
capital structure on the basis of gearing ratio. This ratio
is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt
is calculated as total bank borrowings (including current
and non-current borrowings as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position) less cash and cash equivalents
and bank deposits. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’, as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position,
shareholders’ funds (i.e. total equity attributable to owners of
the Company) plus net debt.
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2. LREZEEVURGAER
ZXR5 (&)
EASE ()

AEER-_ZFTNFHEEER
Tatt—feﬁ%ESO%LAT R B
Ho_TTN\FER - RRITHH
BEARE  AKEAIRABRAK
RRBERBZEHE  ARRERE
B BUOFBRODIHEEER

25. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(e) Capital management (Continued) (e)

During 2009, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged
from 2008, was to maintain the gearing ratio below 80%. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debt. The Group’s gearing ratios as at 31 December

2009 and 2008 were as follows: B AEERZZEZNFERZ
ENFE+-_A=+—RHZEE&E
B EMT -
2009 2008
—EZ2hEF —EENF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FTRARY FrARY
Total borrowings (note 22) wEE (fMsE22) 279,418 244,141
Less: Cash and cash equivalents /BZ RekIREFEEER
and bank deposits MK ERITIER (105,847) (84,951)
Net debt FERS 173,571 159,190
Shareholders’ funds BRRES 295,510 296,836
Total capital FEEEFIN 469,081 456,026
Gearing ratio BEARBELE 37% 35%

ARRABHENE QAR ESLRR
SNSRI 2 B AR -

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26.
VALUES

The Group’s major financial instruments include cash and bank
deposits, available-for-sale financial assets, bank borrowings, trade
and other receivables and trade and other payables. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include credit risk,
liquidity risk, currency risk and interest rate risk. The policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(@) Creditrisk

(i) As at 31 December 2009, the maximum exposure to
credit risk is represented by:

—  the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
consolidated statement of financial position after
deducting any impairment allowance; and

—  the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to
financial guarantees issued by the Company as
disclosed in note 30.

(i) In respect of trade and other receivables, in order to
minimize risk, the management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations of its
customers’ financial position and condition is performed
on each and every major customer periodically. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. The
Group does not require collateral in respect of its
financial assets. Debts are usually due within 30 to 180
days from the date of billing and may be extended to
selected customers depending on their trade volumes
and settlement with the Group. Usually, debtors with
balances aged more than 6 months past due are
requested to settle all outstanding balances before any
further credit is granted.
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

In respect of trade receivables, the Group’s exposure
to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer. The default risk of
the industry and country in which customers operate
also has an influence on credit risk. At the end of the
reporting period, the Group’s concentration of credit risk
by geographical locations is mainly in the PRC, which
accounted for 93% (2008: 93%) of the total trade and
other receivables as at 31 December 2009. The Group
has concentration of credit risk by customers as for 32%
(2008: 31%) and 9% (2008: 16%) of the total trade and
other receivables were due from the Group’s five largest
customers and the largest customer respectively as at 31
December 2009.

Investments are normally only in liquid securities quoted
on a recognised stock exchange, except where entered
into for long term strategic purposes.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in note 18.

As set out in note 30, the financial guarantees given
by the Company were of minimal credit risk to the
Company.

26. Y EBEER A FEGE)

() FERRGE

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZE—_ZEZNF+_A=+—HILLFE
26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26. KRB EERAFE (&)
VALUES (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (b) REEEREM

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to board approval. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants to ensure that it maintains sufficient amount of
cash and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term. The Group relies on bank borrowings
as a significant source of liquidity. As at 31 December 2009,
the Group has available un-utilised banking facilities of
approximately RMB249,980,000 (2008: RMB544,653,000),
details of which are disclosed in note 22.

The following liquidity table set out the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s
and the Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities based
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the end of the reporting period) and
the earliest date the Group and the Company required to pay:
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (Continued)

26. B EREERQFE &)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REEL R ()
The Group AE
2009 008
3 3k EL)E
Total Tote
Morethan ~ More than contractual Carrying Morethan ~ More than contractual Carying
Within 1year 1yearbutless 2yearshutless  Morethan —undiscounted ~ amountat  Withinfyear 1Tyearbutless 2yearsbutless  Morethan  undiscounted  amountat
orondemand  than2years  than 5 years Syers  cashflow 311212009 orondemend  than2years  than5years 5 years ahfow 31122008
HZZENE a2 k3
-ERg -ERE REAE THREE t2RET-B 0 -ERg -ERE RERE THAER T2A=1-A
EER BER BER BEE  ReNEE  Z6EE BEX HER TER Ik REREE  JBEE
RMBOOO  RMB'000  RMB'O  RMB'0O0  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
TRARE  THAR%  TIARE  TRARE  TRARE  TRARE  THARE  TrARE TuARE  TRARE  TRARE  TRARE
Nonedeivatve fnanel 374 2B A
licbltes:
Bank borrowings i1 159483 08 25,25 115,188 mi 418 143709 16,048 8183 51,99 25989 141
Trade and other EEAEAR
ajebles EfEzE 53038 53,038 53,038 5327 - - - 53217 53217
1,481 205 25,56 115,188 31511 3245 19926 16,048 8183 519% 313113 297,358
The Company
2009 008
2 k3 “EE
Total Total
Morethan ~ More than contractual Carrying Morethan — Morethan contractual Carying
Withinyear 1yearbutless 2yearshutless  Morethan undiscounted  amountat ~ WithinTyear Tyearbutless 2yeasbutless — Moethan — undiscounted  amountat
orondemand  than2years  than 5 years Syears  cashflow 31122009 orondemand  than2years  than 5 years 5 years ashfow 31122008
R-2EAE R-BENE
-ERg -ERE REAE THOREE toA=t-B 0 ERE ERE REGE J0AER t-A=1-H
EER WER BER IFE  REREE  2EEE FEX ER BFR Ik REREE  /BEE
RMBOOO  RMB'000  RMB'OD  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'00D RMB'000 RMB' 000 B 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
TrARE  TRARE  TRARE  TRARE  TRARE  TRARE  TTARE  TrARE TrARE TmARE  TARE  TaARE
Bank borronings gt 6,900 6,900 6,866 6,951 = S S 6,951 6,366
Other payebles EfEnzE 14518 14518 14518 0850 - - - 30850 30850
2418 1418 138 37801 . . . 31801 31,716
Financil quarantee BREZEHER:
issted:
Marimum amount ERI5RLE
quaranteed (note 30) (Hib0) 54,664 54,664 172874 - S & 10814
|
XTRKREMRAT 2009 F F 135
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

(9]

Mayer Holdings Limited

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts
existing as at 31 December 2009 are the maximum amounts
the Company could be called if that amount is claimed by
the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations
as at 31 December 2009, the Company considered that
it is more likely than not that no amount will be payable
under the arrangement. This estimate is subject to change
depending on the probability of the counterparty claiming
under the guarantee which is a function of the likelihood that
the financial receivables held by the counterparty which are
guaranteed suffer credit losses.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject
to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.

Interest rate risk

The Group manages its interest rate exposure based on
interest rate level and outlook as well as potential impact
on the Group’s financial position arising from volatility. The
Group currently does not have any interest rate hedging
policy in relation to fair value and cash flow interest rate risks.
The directors monitor the Group’s exposure on ongoing basis
and will consider hedging the interest rate should the need
arise.

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate borrowings and bank deposits carrying fixed
interest rates and cash flow interest rate risk in relation to
variable-rate borrowings (see note 22 for details of these
borrowings) and short-term deposits placed in banks and
financial institutions that are interest-bearing at market
interest rates (see note 19 and 20 for details of these
deposits). The directors consider the Group’s exposure of the
bank deposits to fair value interest rate risk is not significant
as interest-bearing bank deposits are within short maturity
period.
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VALUES (Continued)

(9]

Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate profile

26. B EREERQFE (&)

The following table details the interest rate profile of the

Group’s and the Company’s interest-bearing financial

assets and interest-bearing financial liabilities at the end

of the reporting period:

(0 F=mEk(E
() FIEHEE

TRAVNAKEREARTEZ
AFEEREENESRMA
ERHmEHRZFEAS

The Group The Company
r5H b
2009 2008 2009 2008
Z2ENF “ZB)\E “EENE ZERNE
Effective Effective Effective Effective
interest interest interest interest
rate rate rate rate
LYk ERA= LYk ERA=
% RMB'000 % RMB'000 % RMB'000 % RMB'000
BAlt TRARE B TRARE B TRARE Bl TRARE
Assets EE
Bank balances and deposits BT RiEE 0.01%- 101,864 0.05%- 81318  0.01% 5696 | 0.05%- 5,619
1.11% 20% 3.55%
Liabilities g8
Fixed rate borrowings ~ EEEE
Bank borrowings BITRE 0.28%- 138242 227%- 119,109 - - = =
2.5% 6.4%
Variable rate borrowings FEEE
Bank borrowings RITEE 196%- 141,176 | 2.29%- 125,032 1.96% 6,866 3.95% 6,866
12% 3.95%
Total borrowings BEE 279,418 244,141 6,366 6,866
Net fived rate borrowings T B EF & (L
a a percentage of FRELEL
total net borrowings Aol 49.47% 48.79% - -
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (Continued)

(9]

Mayer Holdings Limited

Interest rate risk (Continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis

All of the bank loans and bank deposits of the Group
which are fixed rate instruments are insensitive to any
change in interest rates. A change in interest rates at the
end of the reporting period would not affect profit or
loss.

At 31 December 2009, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates for
variable rate bank borrowings, with all other variables
held constant, would decrease/increase the Group's
profit after tax and retained profits by approximately
RMB276,000 (2008: RMB200,000). Other components
of consolidated equity would not change in response to
the general increase/decrease in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to the net exposure to interest rate risk for
non-derivative variable rate interest-bearing financial
liabilities and bank deposits in existence at that date.
The 50 basis points increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible
change in interest rates over the period until the end of
next reporting period. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2008.
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26. I EREER A FE(E)
VALUES (Continued)

(d) Currency risk (d) E¥ER

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily
through sales and purchases that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the operations
to which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily United States dollars, Renminbi, New Taiwan dollars
and Hong Kong dollars.

As the estimated foreign currency exposure in respect of
committed future sales and purchases and estimated foreign
currency exposure in respect of highly probable forecast
sales and purchases is not significant, no hedging on foreign
currency risk has been carried out during the year under
review.

In respect of trade receivables and payables held in currencies
other than the functional currency of the operations to which
they relate, the Group ensures that the net exposure is kept to
an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies at
spot rates where necessary to address short-term imbalances.

AEBESZINERR  TER
EREVEEEE S bl
BZEE -EBEBREIZRAX
T ARE - HBEMET -

HREFTHAREE ZEFHINE
B IA KRG ] BeE T 2 TRB B
BZAFHINERBREIFENX
ST (O] R 4 2 3 E 1T AN L B
¥ o

s SEAARRE XA M T RE B M T
B2 8 5 EYIRR N E 5 E Mk
RME - NEBERERR RS
ERREZOKE  TARRE
AR EAIE R B B HME A B
FEHIN A FEER -
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< For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZEZE—_ZEZNF+_A=+—HILLFE
26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26. B EREERQFEE)
VALUES (Continued)
(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) E¥EE(E)
(i) Exposure to currency risk () ZEEHEEERE
The following table details the Group’s and the TRITAREERARRR
Company’s exposure at the end of the reporting HBEHARANBBRERE 2
period to currency risk arising from recognised assets BEEEUIINZEBIEZE
or liabilities denominated in a currency other than the HREEXBEMARLYH
functional currency of the entity to which they relate. B -
The Group KE
2009
“BENE
United States New Taiwan ~ Hong Kong  Singapore
dollars dollars dollars dollars Renminbi
Er gk BT HMRR AR¥
'000 '000 '000 '000 '000
r r r r r
Trade and other receivables BHRWERR
EftEYHE 16,883 13,195 16,625 - 5
Pledged bank deposits BEERRTER 787 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReZEER 6,690 - 5,977 - 1
Bank borrowings RITEE (21,246) - - - -
Trade and other payables BHENERR
EthERFE (3,047) (79 (%) S =
Overall net exposure arising from ~ E£BEBREER
recognised assets and liabilities BE EEFER 67 13,116 22,506 - 6
.,- p
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26. Y EBEERAFEGE)
VALUES (Continued)
(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) E¥EE(E)
(i)  Exposure to currency risk (Continued) () BEHEEEERE (&)
The Group (Continued) REB (8)
2008
ZEENE
United States ~ New Taiwan ~ Hong Kong Singapore
dollars dollars dollars dollars Renminbi
e e BT FMRT ARE
'000 '000 '000 '000 '000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Trade and other receivables BHRWIERR
At ERFE 11,081 23410 14,682 - =
Pledged bank deposits BEARTER 600 = = = =
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkhesEER 6,934 - 4316 75 ~
Bank borrowings RIEE (18,427) = - - -
Trade and other payables BARMERR
EMERE (1,670) (91,689) (208) - -
Derivative financial instrument fTESRIA (4,000) = = = -
Overall net exposure arising from ~ E£BEBAEER
recognised assets and liabilities BECEEFRAR (5,482) (68,279) 18,790 75 S
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26. i EREERAFE(E)

VALUES (Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) E¥smE b (&)
(i)  Exposure to currency risk (Continued) () BEHEESER (&)
The Company ViN/NET|
2009
—EEAE
United States New Taiwan
dollars dollars Renminbi
Epv Haw ARHE
‘000 ‘000 ‘000
Fr Fr Fr
Other receivables e W kIR 1 - 5
Pledged bank deposits EHEARITIER 787 - -
Cash and cash equivalents  IR&RIBEHE
HH 397 - 1
Bank borrowings RITEE (1,000) = =
Other payables L FE S SRR (1,566) (50) S
Overall net exposure arising E4 B 2R
from recognised assets BENAEZ
and liabilities RS HE K (1,381) (50) 6
2008
ZEENF
United States New Taiwan
dollars dollars Renminbi
ETT e AR
"000 "000 000
T T T
Pledged bank deposits EEARITER 600 = =
Cash and cash equivalents IR&RIBEEHEHERB 533 = =
Bank borrowings RITEE (1,000) = =
Other payables H{th T 3RI8 - (118,748) =
Overall net exposure arising E4 B B R
from recognised assets BEERBEZ
L} and liabilities BHEER 133 (118,748) -
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26. B EREERQFE (&)
VALUES (Continued)
(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) E¥ER(E)
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) BUEEDT
The following table indicates the approximate change TRINRAER 2 BRTBE 5
in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) in M (&R A) A EINE
response to reasonably possible changes in the foreign (REERBERREEEKR
exchange rates to which the Group has significant MEXREgE) EXRTRELIR
exposure at the end of the reporting period. ZEBBESmMESE 2O
& o
The Group PiN=S
2009 2008
“EEhEF “EENF

Effect on Effect on

Increase/ profit Increase/ profit

(decrease) after (decrease) after

in foreign tax and in foreign tax and

exchange retained exchange retained

rates profits rates profits

HERH% HiTik

HNEER  RARRE SMNEER  ORFIRRE
/() BRzHE (%) ENzYE

RMB'000 RMB'000

FTRARM FrIARE

United States dollars ETT 5%/(5%) (13)/13 5%/(5%) (1,870)/1,870

New Taiwan dollars ek 5%/(5%) 112/(112) 5%/(5% (710)/710
Hong Kong dollars BT 5%/(5%)  793/(793) 5%/(5%

Singapore dollars N T 5%/(5%) -/- 5%/(5%
Renminbi AR 5%/(5%) —/- 5%/(5%

1/(1)
Al

)
)
) 827/(827)
)
)
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (Continued)

26. EEBEERAFEGE)

(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) E¥ER(E)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (Continued) (i)  HEE ST ()
The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming BRE DT IIBRRINEEX
that the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred BERREHARLEE ®AE
at the end of the reporting period and had been applied WEERARAEBETEE
to each of the Group entities’ exposure to currency BRZAFEze T AR
risk for financial instruments in existence at that date, B REBRR - mATAHAm
and that all other variables, in particular interest rates, BH(LERMNR)HGHERT
remain constant. £ o
The stated changes represent management’s assessment MEFIEEREHEET
of reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange *1I$&iﬁﬁ3EJJ:HEFEJEI’W\\¢ﬁ
rates over the period until the end of next reporting EXRAGEHR EREH 2
period. Results of the analysis as presented in the above hEte ERFIRZOWMER
table represent an aggregation of the effects on each of REEXEEBETEERBIE
the Group entities’ profit after tax and equity measured e BB EWIRREER
in the respective functional currencies, translated into ZERBRE B AREUESE
Renminbi at the exchange rate ruling at the end of the P 2 A EIBR B 18 08 T M M 2
reporting period for presentation purposes. The analysis LREBREE o AWM=
is performed on the same basis for 2008. TENFZR—ELEHET -
(e) Fair values (e) D¥E{E
The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits, RekREEEER  RTRF
trade and other receivables, trade and other payables are K B SRR R N H At E R
not materially different from their carrying amounts because B A K B 5 JE < R 5% K ELAth g 1
of the immediate or short term maturity of these financial B A FEEAREHET RS
instruments. The carrying amounts of bank borrowings AEER ARZEEHIATIA
approximately their fair values. RN EREARE - RITEE
ZIRE{EHEQ A ERE -
(f) Estimation of fair values f) DFEMLEF

AT B BIAGFT AT &8 T
AR FENERTEAMEBRR :

The following summarises the major methods and
assumptions applied in determining the fair values of the
following financial instruments:

Mayer Holdings Limited Annual Report 2009
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (Continued)

(f) Estimation of fair values

(i)

(ii)

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

The fair value is estimated as the present value of future
cash flows, discounted at current market interest rates
for similar financial instruments.

Financial guarantees

The fair value of financial guarantees issued is
determined by reference to fees charged in an arm’s
length transaction for similar services when such
information is obtainable or is otherwise estimated by
reference to interest rate differentials. Where reliable
estimates of such information can be made, the latter
is arrived at by comparing the actual rates charged by
lenders when the guarantee is made available with the
estimated rates that lenders would have charged had
the guarantees not been available.

27. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) During the year, the Group entered into the following
material related party transactions which were carried out in
the normal course of the Group’s business:

(i

ROC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an aircraft lease agreement with Daily
Air Corporation (“Daily Air”), a related company in
which Mr. Huang Chun-fa, a non-executive director
of the Company, has beneficial interest, regarding the
leasing of four aircrafts and the provision of consultancy
services by ROC to Daily Air for a term of three years
commencing from 1 May 2006 to 30 April 2008 in
consideration of rental income and consultancy fee
income. On 6 May 2008, the lease agreement was
further extended to 7 July 2011 with rental income
and consultancy fee income remain unchanged. At the
end of the reporting period, RMB8,557,000 (2008:
RMB7,025,000) is due from this related company (note
18(e)). The amounts of transactions during the year are
disclosed in (iv) below.

26. Y EBEERAFEGE)

(f) 2FEMF (E)

(i)

(ir)

HEERRBE
ATEEKRKRERENE
(Bl % BT AR
B FI R T SRE ) 2t o

B ER

BEZOOMBERNDF
BEN2EZRURBER TR
5 AR & A (R &
BZER) KBENERZHE
tEfAET - MZFEEF BT 52
it BETIALBESR
ERTETREMERAN X
HERRREERTEHED
FEMER BRI REFH M AT -

27. EXBBEAEALIRS
() RER AEBERELKEHE
IrEAEBEATRSOT

EnERERLA

REEZ2EKHBARBEER
BB RARELEMERDA
Rar ([EBLmz=]) (KA
RAIIERITEETEFTHLER
HEhEA TSR IR
BHEEWRRE ARG
Rz HERBBERNELR
MERHBERRE 8%
ERFRA—BE-ZEZEN
FOMA=+HItAH=5F"
REAEHESKWARERS
WA - RZEENFRHAN
B fAEpmcE—SLTR
E-_Z——%tAXAB #A
WA K BB U A R 4
B R F)3E A8,557,000
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27. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(Continued)

(a)

Mayer Holdings Limited

(ii)

On 13 April 2007, Guangzhou Mayer, a 81.4% indirectly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the Raw
Material Purchase Agreement with Mayer Steel Pipe
Corporation (“Taiwan Mayer”), the ultimate holding
company, for the acquisition of raw materials from
Taiwan Mayer for the period commencing from 1 April
2007 to 31 March 2010. The directors of the Company
expect that the maximum amount of raw material
purchase for the three years ending 31 March 2010
will be in the amounts of USD3,900,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB30,100,000), USD4,300,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB33,200,000)
and USD4,700,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB36,300,000), respectively.

Further on 22 May 2009, Guangzhou Mayer entered
into a revised Raw Material Purchase Agreement
with Taiwan Mayer for the period commencing from
1 July 2009 to 31 December 2011. The directors of
the Company expect that the maximum amount of
raw material purchase for the six months ending 31
December 2009 will be in the amount of USD1,560,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB10,723,000) and the
two years ending 31 December 2011 will be in the
amounts of approximately USD2,340,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB16,080,000) and USD2,340,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB16,080,000),
respectively.
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27. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(a) (Continued)

(ii)

(iif)

(Continued)

On the same date, Guangzhou Mayer entered into a
Finished Goods Sales Agreement with Taiwan Mayer
for the sales of finished goods to Taiwan Mayer for the
period commencing from 1 July 2009 to 31 December
2011. The directors of the Company expect that the
maximum amount of finished goods sales for the
six months ending 31 December 2009 will be in the
amount of USD1,837,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB12,626,000) and the two years ending 31
December 2011 will be in the amounts of approximately
USD3,675,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB25,261,000) and USD5,512,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB37,878,000), respectively. The
amounts of transactions during the year are disclosed in
(iv) below.

At 31 December 2008, a personal guarantee was given
by Mr. Lai Yueh-hsing, a director of the Company, to a
bank for banking facilities granted to the Group.

The guarantee was released on 5 June 2009 when the
Group fully repaid the bank borrowings.

27. ERBREALXRZ (B)

(a) (&)

(ii)

(iii)

EnERERLA

(%)

BA EMEGTEGEED
AIVRKRHERZE  RD
R =TT NFLA—H
EZT——F+ZA=+—
HEARM a2 EDHERMK
me RRREFEEY HE
—EENF+ZA=+—H
IEABEAZEKBHEEN K
B R4 51,837,000% T
(#E R #912,626,0007T A
R®) MREBEZE_F——
F+-_A=+—HIMAEF
[E 185 Bl4943,675,0003E 7T
(& R #925,261,000C AR
#) }%5,512,000% T (&
72 #937,878,000TT AREE) ©
FARXRZLER T X(VAE

Ego

RZBBENF+ZA=+—
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27. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)
(a) (Continued)

(iv)

(a) (&)

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group
also entered into the following material related party
transactions during the year:

(iv)

27. EREBEALRS ()

B 7N B 75 ¥ 25 H b B 49 S
Sl 2 R B REERRIN - R
ERFATETNTERE
BEALRS :
Amount paid to/(received from)
the related parties

Name of B/ (FEW)
related party Nature of Nature of BHEALZFE
BHEAL relationship transaction 2009 2008
ZHH/ B BRZME REME “EERE “TENE
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
iz FrARY TTAR®
Lo Haw and his Family member Rental paid (i) 120 120
spouse of director of ENHEE
BERHEERRB the Company
KRRESZ
XIEKE
Daily Air Common director Rental income (ii) (8,033) (8,171)
EemE XEREEZH Consultancy fee income (ii) (356) 437)
Consumable stock sales (ii) (830) (1,172)
He WA
BRERA
BRERFHEE
Wealth & Health Minority shareholder Consultancy fee (ii) - 455
Investments of Guangzhou BHE
Limited Mayer
BMED 2 PERR
Winner Industrial Minority shareholder Purchases (ii) - 2,463
Corporation of Vietnam Mayer &
Limited HWEEDz DERE
Taiwan Mayer Ultimate holding Rental paid (i) 24 -
EEXTG company Purchases (ii) 5,474 =
REIERR A A Sales (ii) (1,578) =
[REPEEEA
BE
g8
Notes: [T

() The rentals which were paid for premises owned by Mr. Lo
Haw and his spouse and Taiwan Mayer were determined with
reference to the prevailing market rental.

(i) Mutually agreed by the parties concerned.

Mayer Holdings Limited Annual Report 2009
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27. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)
(a) (Continued)

(v)  Amount due from/(to) related parties:

(a) (&

27. EREBEALRS ()

(v) FEY (R BRIEALR

15 :
The Group
TEE
2009 2008
—EERE —EENF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FTRARY FrHARY
Amount due from a director FEMEERIE (FT3E18)
(note 18) - 17
Amount due from a related FEU A B E A R 508 (FisE18)
company (note 18) 8,557 7,025
Amount due to a director FERTESERIE (FFE21)
(note 21) (1,119) (162)
Amount due to minority e A BOR R RRIE (M 5E21)
shareholder (note 21) - (152)
Amount due to ultimate holding  FE{ & AR 2% A A1 7 E
company (note 21) (BF5E21) (11,607) (21,285)

(b) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel, including
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note
8 and certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed in

(b) TEBEBABZHMH
TEEEABZEHH (2EHES
PREE N AR RES Z FR KM
HFEENETRSFHEEZR

note 9, is as follows: B) IR
2009 2008
—EEhE —EENF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
TRARY FrARE

Salaries and other short-term HFehEMEHEEREH

employee benefits 3,478 4,432
Retirement scheme contributions BRRET B R 16 8
3,494 4,440

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 6(b)).

et A e B A | (R

6(b)) °
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28. COMMITMENTS 28. &I
(@) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2009 not (@) RZEZNF+_A=+—81
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: RBBMI KRR B RERE 2
BAGERENT -
The Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FRARHE FTARE
Contracted for B2 ET4Y
- Acquisition of property, — B - R R
plant and equipment 3,722 =
The Company did not have any significant capital RREZREHKR KAWL E
commitments at both the end of the reporting period. )& KB ARAIE o
(b) At 31 December 2009, the total future minimum lease b)) R—EBEZAF+_A=+—8"
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable BEPAITREGERN 2 BiaR
as follows: REERNFBENOT :
The Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
TRARYE FTARE
Within 1 year —&FR 602 1,376
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFA 99 630
701 2,006
The Group leases a number of properties under operating NEFBREBERSEHOMBREZE
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one to WE -BO—ROTEP—=2=
three years. None of the leases includes contingent rentals. FoEBAYBRESAREE -
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2009, the following assets of the Group and of

the Company are pledged to banks for the banking facilities and

loans granted to the Group and the Company:

29.

EEEHR
RZZEEhE+—_A=+—H8 UT
AEBRARRZEEERAEER
KA ERZRITEERERMIKF
F 4857 -

The Group The Company
rEE ¥ NN
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EENFE ZEZETENF ZEBAEFE ZTE2NF
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
iz FTRARYE TAR®E FTRAR®E TrARE
Building and factory premises 1£F &% &E 14(g) - 24,376 - -
Construction in progress HEEIR 14(g) = 7,656 = =
Plant and machinery HeEs K 5% i 14(g) = 34,816 S =
Investment property KEME 14(g) 157,745 153,976 - =
Prepaid lease payments FENHEERIE  14(9) - 8,194 = —
Pledged bank deposits EEMBITHER 19 5,404 5,578 5,404 4,120
163,149 234,596 5,404 4,120
FINANCIAL GUARANTEE 30. B HER

During the current and prior years, the Company has given
corporate guarantees to certain banks in connection with banking
facilities of RMB92,180,000 (2008: RMB244,356,000) granted
by the banks to the subsidiaries. At 31 December 2009, such
facilities were drawn down by the subsidiaries to the extent of
RMB47,798,000 (2008: RMB172,874,000).

The maximum liability of the Company under the guarantees
issued represents the amount drawn down by the subsidiary of
RMB47,798,000 (2008: RMB172,874,000). No recognition was
made because the fair value of the guarantees was insignificant
and that the directors did not consider it probable that a claim
would be made against the Company under the guarantees.

RAFERLEFE  AARGRHER
AIERRITEEMRSE TRTREM
92,180,000t ARB (ZE TN\ &F :
244,356,0007T A R #) 2 R EIHELR o
RZZEZAF+_A=+—H " %%
B~ 12 4R EVE 1 #947,798,0007T A
R¥s(ZZZT )\ : 172,874,000t AR
¥IEE -

RARIGEL A ZERmAE &
SR DEZMBATRARI
¥847,798,000L ARB (ZEENF
172,874,000t A R#E) - AR ERZ
AEEVIIEE MEERARRTHE
RAZERMERERRZIEE TR
B 1 3 4% 7% ELHERR o

ETERBERAE 2009 F #H
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31. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 31. EERKER

152

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC,
the Group participates in defined contribution retirement schemes
governed by the relevant local government authorities in which
they operate. The Company’s subsidiary in the PRC is required
to make monthly contributions to the retirement schemes up
to the time of retirement of the eligible employees, at a rate of
12% of the local standard basic salaries. The local government
authorities are responsible for the pension liabilities to these retired
employees.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme") under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$20,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

As of 31 December 2009, the Group has no other material
obligation for the payment of pension benefits associated with
those schemes beyond the annual contributions described above.

Mayer Holdings Limited Annual Report 2009

REBAZHEBESE LR AEED
SEARMT R RBAMEE 2 TR
HFGRIRET 8] - AR AR B2 K8
RENEEREBRKEAARE
RETEIER . HRBREMTEER
Fre12% - R HE AR B
ZERNMEB ZRRE

REFERHMELBESFEED - K
SETRREEEREGIER2®
BReHERATEE (REEF
gll) - BREEESHEBIULETAT
B2 ERHEFURAKTE - REBERES
e REMEEEHARESAR
WA Z5%MET &I - HKBEUAEA
HE R Y A 20,0007 7T & LR - (A5 &
e 2 BN ER B -

K-ZEAF+=A=+—H BKE
A G RON - AR A B A
RS EEBLRA SRR 2 2 it
EAHE -



Notes to the Financial Statements

B % WS MR

For the year ended 31 December 2009 BZE—_ZEZTNF+_A=+—HILFE

32. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements,

the Group have the following significant events after the end of

the reporting period that need to be disclosed:

(a)

On 26 November 2009, the Company entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with various vendors which are
third parties independent of the Company and of the Group.
Pursuant to the agreement, the vendors have conditionally
agreed to sell and the Company has conditionally agreed
to purchase 1,000 shares of Maxipetrol Hong Kong Limited
("Maxipetrol HK"), representing the entire issued share
capital of Maxipetrol HK, at an aggregate consideration
of HK$1,264,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB1,112,699,000), which will be satisfied by the Group
at completion (i) as to HK$400,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB352,120,000) by the issue of 3-year
promissory notes; (i) as to HK$600,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB528,180,000) by the issue of 5-year
convertible notes, bearing interest at a rate of 1% per annum;
and (jii) as to HK$264,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB232,399,000) by the issue of 8-year convertible notes,
bearing interest at a rate of 2% per annum. Maxipetrol
HK will be principally engaged in petroleum production
in Argentina. On the same date, the board of directors
also proposed to increase the Company’s authorised share
capital from HK$200,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB195,662,000) divided into 2,000,000,000 ordinary
shares to HK$300,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB283,692,000) divided into 3,000,000,000 ordinary
shares by the creation of an additional 1,000,000,000
unissued ordinary shares.

The acquisition constituted, under the Listing Rules, a very
substantial acquisition of the Company, the details of which
were set out in the announcement issued by the Company on
8 December 2009. The acquisition has not completed up to
23 April 2010.

32. HEHKREE

BRUBRESBREEN

AEEZ

ATEABERRKRERATHE

—EEANF+—A=Z+RB K
NRARZEZTREAHGLE E W
HOBEBBEABBIRNARR K
AEBZE=ZF -REHBHE &
FEKGHRELEMARRAR
T 1 b [7] 2 B AMaxipetrol Hong
Kong Limited([ Maxipetrol HK]J)
Z.1,0000% B 15 (BIMaxipetrol HK
EEHEBITRA) - BREAR
1,264,000,0007% 7T (A& R 4
1,112,699,0007T A R #) -+ 15
MALEERTERATIFRX
F + (i)E #1400,000,0005% JT (48
& 7 #9352,120,0007C A R #) LA
BIT3FHARLERAR I
(ii) 600,000,000 7t (48 & K 4
528,180,000 A R#) LA 8475
FHABRERE (BF R1%5
B) A R(iii) 264,000,000
7 70 (M8 & P #9232,399,0007T
AR DA% 1784 B AT #2 A% 22
B OEFR2%E) AR I Ao
Maxipetrol HK#§ & Z 5 Fi 1R i
HEEHEE-RA EFE
X 2 % i 3@ 1 5%1,000,000,000
fERETERR  BARAQEE
7E B% 7K 51200,000,0005% JT (48
B 4195,662,0007T A R #)
(% /2,000,000,0000% & & A% )
# 2300,000,0005% 7t (HHE R
#7283,692,000C AR ) (5 B
3,000,000,0000% & @A) -

RIEEMARA - WEBKAR A
ZIFBERNYBEERE  FBHER
ARAEHMR-_ZTNFE+_H
NBZRMh - ZBEBEEE—F—
ZEMNA-+=HHWARTK °
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32. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(Continued)

(b)

On 21 January 2010, Guangzhou Mayer entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with purchaser which is Taiwan
Mayer. Pursuant to the agreement, Guangzhou Mayer has
agreed to sell and the purchaser has agreed to purchase
1,750,000 shares of Vietnam Mayer, representing 50% of
the issued share capital of Vietnam Mayer and the Group's
all effective interest in Vietnam Mayer, at an aggregate
consideration of USD2,100,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB14,336,700), which will be satisfied in cash.

The disposal constituted, under the Listing Rules, a
discloseable and connected transaction of the Company,
the details of which were set out in the circular issued
by the Company on 11 February 2010. The disposal had
been approved in the extraordinary general meeting of the
independent shareholders held on 25 March 2010. The
disposal has not completed up to 23 April 2010 due to the
processing of relevant transfer and registration procedures by
the Group.

33. PARENT AND ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY
At 31 December 2009, the directors consider the parent and

ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Mayer Steel Pipe

Corporation, which was incorporated in the Republic of China and

does not produce financial statements available for public use.

34. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

As a result of the application of HKAS 1 (Revised 2007),
Presentation of Financial Statements, and HKFRS 8, Operating

Segments, certain comparative figures have been adjusted to

conform to current year's presentation and to provide comparative

amounts in respect of items disclosed for the first time in 2009.

Further details of these developments are disclosed in note 3.

Mayer Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2009

32.

33.

34.

BEMERERE (A

b)) RZTE—ZTF—A=+—H &
METREEREEEXTERE
Bk o Bt eE - BMNEDRR
BEHERBEFREBEEMEE
25 21,750,000 B¢ 15 (&g
T250% B EHITRARAEER
MEED 2 MBERER) £
R & 52,100,000F TTHE R L
14,336,700;TC ARY) - LAIR&E T
HEEE -

RIFEWRA - WHEFEBEBK
ARARZATHEBERBHRS
HBEINARANR T —FF
“HAT—BEITZBER- ILHE
FHER-_T-—ZEF=-A-+H
B2 BRI RSB IR
ERHEFHEE_T—TFN
AZ+T=HrEATK BAAEE
IEHHIEME RS Mt T4 -

BRAFRBRER DT
R-ZENFE+=—A=+—B &%
RATEEZBARRRKERAT
AXTHEBRHBRAT  HAT
EREFMALZ AT - £ iR
BBREHAREM -

EEBEF

HREREEGTENE IR (2T
THEETNMBREZ2R) REEY
BEERIESHCEB B - ETH
BREFERABUNEERFEZERS
X WRH-FFNFEREERAB
ZHBSE RFEUZEMBHBR
B 5T 34K ER o



Notes to the Financial Statements

B % WS MR

For the year ended 31 December 2009 BZE—_ZEZNF+_A=+—HILFE

35. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
which are described in note 2, management has made
certain key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimated uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, as discussed below:

(i)

(ii)

Fair values of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, available-for-
sale financial assets) is determined by using valuation
techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods and
makes assumptions that are based on market conditions
existing at the end of each reporting period. The use
of methodologies, models and assumptions in pricing
and valuing these financial assets and liabilities is
subjective and requires varying degrees of judgement by
management, which may result in significantly different
fair values and results. All significant financial valuation
models are strictly controlled and regularly recalibrated
and vetted.

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment

Useful lives of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment are defined as the period over which they
are expected to be available for use by the Group. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment or
similar nature and functions. Management will increase
the depreciation charge where useful lives are less
than previously estimated lives, and it will derecognise
or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold. Actual
economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives;
and actual residual values may differ from estimated
residual values. Periodic review could result in a change
in depreciable lives and residue lives and therefore
depreciation expense in future periods.

35. B AT fh et R H
(@) M FREMEERR

HERRAME2ME A RE S BR
Z@iEr BEEEFELTETA
BAARKHEBZRRENBEEHR
TR THARENEMBER
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EXABRZBREAERTXH

AL
[liii}

()

(ir)

EHERERLA

=@M TAZ A FE
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35. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Mayer Holdings Limited

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and land
lease prepayments

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of
its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset, which requires significant judgement
relating to level of revenue and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available information
in determining an amount that is a reasonable
approximation of the recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of revenue and operating
costs. Changes in these estimates could have a
significant impact on the carrying amount of the assets
and could result in additional impairment charge or
reversal of impairment in future periods.

Impairment of receivables

The Group maintains impairment allowance for doubtful
accounts based upon evaluation of the recoverability
of the trade receivables and other receivables, where
applicable, at the end of each reporting period.
The estimates are based on the ageing of the trade
receivables and other receivables balances, the credit
worthiness and the past collection history of each
individual customer, and the historical write-off
experience, net of recoveries. If the financial condition of
the debtors were to deteriorate, additional impairment
allowance may be required.

Annual Report 2009
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35. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

v)

(vi)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
selling and distribution costs. These estimates are based
on the current market condition and the historical
experience of selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of competitor actions
in response to severe industry cycles. Management will
reassess the estimations at the end of the reporting
period.

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions. The
management carefully evaluates tax implications of
transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly.
The tax treatment of these transactions is reconsidered
periodically to take into account all changes in tax
legislations. Deferred tax assets are recognised for
deductible temporary differences. As those deferred
tax assets can only be recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the unused tax credits can be utilised,
management’s judgement is required to assess the
probability of future taxable profits. Management'’s
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional
deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes probable
that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised in
respect of the withholding income tax that would
be payable on the distribution of retained profits
accumulated since 1 January 2008 of the Group’s
subsidiary in the PRC as the Company controls the
dividend policy of this subsidiary and it has been
determined that it is not probable that profits will be
distributed out of this subsidiary in the foreseeable
future. Any changes in dividend policy may result in the
recognition of the related deferred tax liabilities.

35. T s & H & (&)
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35. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS  35. @:H{& 5t & # & (&)
(Continued)

(b) Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s (b) EERAXEESTTBRKREZ
accounting policies BARETHHE

In determining the carrying amounts of some assets and CEETDEERBEZIREE

liabilities, the Group makes assumptions for the effects of
uncertain future events on those assets and liabilities at
the end of the reporting period. These estimates involve
assumptions about such items as cash flows and discount
rates used. The Group's estimates and assumptions are based
on historical experience and expectations of future events
and are reviewed periodically. In addition to assumptions
and estimations of future events, judgements are also made
during the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are stated at cost less

I - 2S5 B Bt S E B9 SR R = 1
HBREMREEMNBBIRER
R - BB S RERER
ENFRBREZRR KA&EE
RIS R RREMF 2 TBAHE
A R RER - I E BT o Bk
HRREMHF BRI - K
SETEREASTBRBIMEL A
B o

B &2 @A EZRE
A E SR EERKAETR

impairment. Judgement is required when determining BESE RETREFEEE
whether an impairment existed. In making this judgement, )UETEH# = Z R HIET - (R AR
historical data and factors such as industry and sector EERNTHNEEBEMNAE %
performance and financial information regarding the investee ZZDTT%&EQE‘J%EE AR EE R

are taken into account. BB TS EHL -
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36. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued the following amendments, new standards and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended 31

December 2009.

The Group has not early applied any of the following new and
revised Standards, Amendments or Interpretations that have been

issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)
HKAS 24 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)
HKAS 32 (Amendment)
HKAS 39 (Amendment)
HKFRS 1 (Amendment)
HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 9

HK(IFRIC) - Int 14 (Amendment)

HK(FRIC) - Int 17

HK(FRIC) - Int 19

Amendment to HKFRS 5 as part of Improvements
to HKFRSs 2008

Improvements to HKFRSs 2009

Related Party Disclosures®

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements'

Classification of Rights Issues*

Eligible Hedged Items'

Additional Exemptions for First-time Adopters®

Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment
Transactions®

Business Combinations'

Financial Instruments’

Prepayments of a Minimun Funding
Requirement?®

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners'

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity
Instruments®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009.

2 Amendments that are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2009 and 1 January 2010, as appropriate.

£ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010.

. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2010.

> Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010.

J Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011.

u Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
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36. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 36. CEMEARREBE_FZTN
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED F4+-—A=+T—HLFEA.
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR W B R IR E RIS ET ~ H
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009 (Continued) HEAMBRENTRSE (F)
The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the accounting for FE R BB R 5 5 M R B 358 (A4EET)
business combination for which the acquisition date is on or after ﬂébﬁﬁ?&%ﬁ%ﬂ% H ﬁﬁﬁ’j_ggﬂit
the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on RA—Bsz&Mn s 8BFEmEH
or after 1 July 2009. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting MABRE BB EBE M2
treatment for changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a BRIE o BAGEERIZE279% (IEE])

subsidiary.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets and will be
effective from 1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted.
The Standard requires all recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement to be measured at either amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that (i) are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows and
(i) have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost. All other debt investments and equity investments
are measured at fair value. In addition, under HKFRS 9, changes in
fair value of equity investments are generally recognised in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income recognised
in profit or loss. The application of HKFRS 9 might affect the
classification and measurement of the Group’s financial assets.

In addition, as part of Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009,
HKAS 17 Leases has been amended in relation to the classification
of leasehold land. The amendments will be effective from 1 January
2010, with earlier application permitted. Before the amendments
to HKAS 17, lessees were required to classify leasehold land as
operating leases and presented as prepaid lease payments in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The amendments
have removed such a requirement. Instead, the amendments
require the classification of leasehold land to be based on the
general principles set out in HKAS 17, that are based on the
extent to which risks and rewards incidental to ownership of a
leased asset lie with the lessor or the lessee. The application of
the amendments to HKAS 17 might affect the classification and
measurement of the Group’s leasehold land at revalued amount.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the
other new and revised Standards, Amendments or Interpretations
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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